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AGENDA

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL
BOARD MEETING
Monday, November 18, 2019 - 7:00 p.m.

PAGE
Call to Order

Declarations of Interest

Moment of Silence/Acknowledgement

The Durham District School Board acknowledges that many Indigenous Nations have
longstanding relationships, both historic and modern, with the territories upon which our
school board and schools are located. Today, this area is home to many Indigenous
peoples from across Turtle Island. We acknowledge that the Durham Region forms a
part of the traditional and treaty territory of the Mississaugas of Scugog Island First
Nation, the Mississauga Peoples and the treaty territory of the Chippewas of Georgina
Island First Nation.

O Canadal!
R.S. McLaughlin C.V.l.

(Trustee Ashley Noble)
Adoption of Agenda

(a) APPROVED Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of 1-12
September 16, 2019

(b) APPROVED Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of October 7, 2019 13-15
(c) DRAFT Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 21, 2019 16 - 25

This Is My Story Video
(Chair Michael Barrett)

Community Presentations

Ministry Memorandums — Information Update Verbal
(Director Lisa Millar)

Public Question Period

Presentations
(a) Presentations

(i) Grove School — CTCC Program 26 — 36
(Superintendent Andrea McAuley)
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Presentations (Continued)

(ii) Treaties Recognition Week
(Superintendent Mohamed Hamid)

Report from the Committee of the Whole in Camera

13.

14.

15.

— @DDSB

Director’'s News from the System

(Director Lisa Millar)

Recommended Actions

(a) Report: Standing Committee Meeting of November 4, 2019
(Trustee Carolyn Morton)

(b) Report: SEAC Meeting of September 19, 2019
(Trustee Donna Edwards)

(c) Financial Process and 2018-2019 Financial Report
(Director Lisa Millar)

(d) Creation of a New Policy for English Language Learners (ELLSs)
Instruction
(Superintendent Mohamed Hamid)

(e) Interim Treasurer of the Board
(Director Lisa Millar/General Legal
Counsel Patrick Cotter)

(H Notice of Motion: Review of Regulation, Daily Physical Activity
(Superintendent Stephen Nevills)

Information ltems

(a) Flushing and Testing for Lead - Update
(Director Lisa Millar/Kerri Stewart,
Manager, Health & Safety)

(b) Education Development Charge, Policy Framework Update
(Director Lisa Millar/Chief Facilities
Officer Christine Nancekivell)

(c) Safe Schools — Quick Reference Guides
(Superintendent Georgette Davis)

(d) EQAO - Furthering our Supports for English Language Learners
and Students with Special Needs
(Superintendents Andrea McAuley/
Mohamed Hamid)

(e) Ontario Autism Program Update #4
(Superintendent Andrea McAuley)

PAGE
37 -39
40 — 48
49 - 65
66 — 125
126 — 132

133 -135

136 — 141
142 — 148
149 — 164
165 — 178
179 — 190
191 - 203
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PAGE
15. Information Items (Continued)
() Service Agreement with Mississaugas of Scugog Island First Nation 204 — 207
(Superintendent Mohamed Hamid)
(9) Transportation — DSTS Annual Report 208 — 224
(Director Lisa Millar/
Superintendent Heather Mundy)
16. Correspondence:
(a) Action Requested:
(i) Mississaugas of Scugog Island First Nation 225 - 226
(b) Other:
(i) Halton DSB
227 — 228

17. Other Business

18. Adjournment
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APPROVED

MINUTES
The Regular Meeting of the Board

Monday, September 16, 2019

The Regular Meeting of the Durham District School Board was held this date in the Board Room,
Education Centre, 400 Taunton Road East, Whitby.

1. Call to Order:
The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Members Present:  Trustees Michael Barrett, Patrice Barnes, Chris Braney, Paul
Crawford (left the meeting at 8:45 p.m.), Donna Edwards, Darlene
Forbes, Niki Lundquist, Carolyn Morton, Ashley Noble, Scott
Templeton, Christine Thatcher, Student Trustees Sally Meseret,
Arlene Wang, Tyler West

Officials Present: Director Lisa Millar, Associate Director David Visser, Interim Associate
Director Anne Marie Laginski, Superintendents Georgette Davis,
Mohamed Hamid, Margaret Lazarus, Jamila Maliha, Jim Markovski,
Andrea McAuley, Heather Mundy, Silvia Peterson, Communications
Manager, Peter Blake and Communications Officer, Charles Senior

Recording Secretary: Kim Cox

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest at this time.
3. Moment of Silence

Chair Michael Barrett advised that the Durham District School Board acknowledges that many
Indigenous Nations have longstanding relationships, both historic and modern, with the
territories upon which our school board and schools are located. Today, this area is home to
many Indigenous peoples from across Turtle Island (North America). We acknowledge that
the Durham Region forms a part of the traditional and treaty territory of the Mississaugas of
Scugog Island First Nation, the Mississauga Peoples and the treaty territory of the Chippewas
of Georgina Island First Nation.

4, O Canada
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5.

Anderson C.V.I.

Trustee Niki Lundquist welcomed the Anderson C.V.l. Senior Band. The group performed
three selections entitled “Colonel Bogey,” “A Shaker Trilogy,” and “Creed.” Trustee Niki
Lundquist congratulated the group, on behalf of the trustees, for their excellent performance.

Adoption of Agenda

2019:65
MOVED by Trustee Scott Templeton
SECONDED by Trustee Patrice Barnes
THAT THE AGENDA BE APPROVED.
CARRIED
2019:66
MOVED by Trustee Donna Edwards
SECONDED by Trustee Ashley Noble
THAT THE FOLLOWING APPROVED MINUTES BE RECEIVED:
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF MAY 21, 2019;
THAT THE FOLLOWING DRAFT MINUTES BE APPROVED:
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 17, 2019; AND
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2019.
CARRIED

And This is My Story

Chair Michael Barrett advised trustees that starting in September 2018, the Board began a
new feature entitled, This Is My Story, at every Board meeting to honour, recognize and
celebrate the identity of DDSB students, staff and families. Every person has a story that
makes them unique, and understanding the impact of identity helps us at the DDSB to
strengthen our ability and commitment to ensuring that Equity, Diversity, Identity and
Inclusion is a core priority. Tonight's edition of “And This Is My Story” featured Toufan Arieb,
teacher, Terry Fox P.S.

Community Presentations

There were no community presentations at this time.

3.
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9.

10.

1.

Ministry Memorandums — Information

Director Lisa Millar provided trustees with an update on the following:

(i) PPM 128: The Provincial Code of Conduct and School Board Codes of Conduct as it
relates to cell phones and personal mobile devices.

(ii) Bill 65: Safer School Zones Act as it relates to municipalities introducing a more
streamlined process to participate in Ontario’s red-light camera program and the use
of automated speed enforcement systems in community safety zones.

(i)  Revised elementary health and physical education curriculum.

(iv) New mathematics proficiency test for teachers who are new applicants as part of
their registration and certification approval at the OCT.

(v) Small revisions to the provincial report card.

(vi) Currently a group of CODE members are meeting with the Ministry to advocate for
students with autism.

(vii)  Proposed regulations on education development charges and notice for school
boards acquiring land.

(viii) PPM 163: School Board Policies on Services Animals requires boards to update or
have procedures by 2020.

Public Question Period

There were no public questions at this time.
Presentations/Awards

(@)  Award

(i) Bruce Mather Award

Director Lisa Millar advised that Bruce Mather served as Director of Education during the
period 1984 to 1989. When he retired, the Durham Board of Education established the
“Bruce Mather Award” to recognize his service to education.

The prize has been awarded annually to a staff member (or staff team) having made an
exceptional contribution to the growth of others. The gift of money accompanying the award
can be used to enhance the project or area being recognized. Due to the completion of the
funds allocated upon his retirement in 1989, this will be the final year for the Bruce Mather
Award.

A Committee consisting of the Chair of the Board, Michael Barrett, Vice-Chairperson,
Carolyn Morton, and the Director of Education, Lisa Millar, reviewed nominations and have
selected Natalie Morgan, Guidance Head, Peer Tutor Advisor, Brooklin H.S. as the recipient
for the 2018/2019 school year.
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(i) Bruce Mather Award (Continued)

Natalie Morgan has been described as an extremely professional, compassionate,
dedicated and committed individual whose focus is on student success and continually
building positive relationships with all educational stakeholders.

Natalie Morgan co-created pathway transition material (Transitions, Progressions and
Destinations booklets) that continue to be utilized system-wide by the Board as a best
practice series of documents. As one of the initial Credit Recovery teachers in the Board,
she worked to create a Board Credit Recovery Information Package for teachers and
administration.

Natalie Morgan is always willing to make time to meet with students in crisis and has helped
hundreds of students over the course of her career.

Student success and skill development has been supported by engaging students in diverse
learning experiences to support personal and academic growth. Through her personal and
academic counselling, she encourages students to take initiative and demonstrate
leadership. She has been extremely instrumental in building a very positive school culture
by encouraging high participation in extra-curricular activities. She coordinates and publish
Club and Team charts for our entire school community so students can participate in
activities that engage and connect. In her role as Guidance Counsellor, Natalie excels
supporting students’ emotional and mental health needs while providing students with the
tools and strategies to help themselves.

Natalie Morgan coordinates the Student Leadership and Mentoring Program and teaches
senior student leaders to deliver important cooperative learning lessons to our Grade 9
students about digital citizenship, bullying and other vital life skills. She understands the
importance of gathering student voice to ensure a safe, inclusive and accepting learning
environment.

As an individual whose unrelenting commitment to the well-being of her students and the
school community is outstanding, Natalie Morgan is a deserving recipient of the Bruce
Mather Award.

Director Lisa Millar, Chair Michael Barrett, Vice Chair Carolyn Morton presented Natalie
Morgan with an award of recognition and participated in a photo opportunity.

(b) Presentations

(i) Culturally Responsive and Relevant Pedagogy Toolkit and Website

Superintendents Mohamed Hamid and Margaret Lazarus provided trustees with an overview
of the Culturally Responsive and Relevant (CRRP) Toolkit and Website. They introduced
Dawn White, Vice Principal, Anderson C.V.I. and Camille Alli, Facilitator, Equity and
Inclusion who provided trustees with a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the purpose of
the toolkit which is to provide teachers with ideas, tools and strategies to create an

-4-



Regular Meeting of the Board Minutes
September 16, 2019

15.

(ii) Culturally Responsive and Relevant Pedagogy Toolkit and Website (Continued)

environment that promotes cultural identity, inclusive pedagogy and proportional outcomes
for all students. This teaching recognizes that all students learn differently and that these
differences may be connected to background, language, family structure and social or
cultural identity. They outlined the six characteristics of CRRP and shared the socio-cultural
consciousness activity and impact exercise that Anderson CVI engaged in where individuals
identify all things that they are and then start to cross things off the list. They also answered
questions of trustees.

(i)  Engagement Strategic Plan

Superintendent Heather Mundy provided trustees with information on the Engagement
Strategic Plan. She introduced Michael Bowman, Education Officer, Stephanie Spencer,
Principal, Gordon B. Attersley P.S. and Jennifer McLaughlin, parent. The group provided
trustees with a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the engagement priority to engage
students, parents, and community members to improve student outcomes and build public
confidence. The Parent Involvement Committee, Parents as Partners Committee and DDSB
departments work collaboratively to gather voice, plan and execute parent/family/community
events. The Engagement Strategic Plan uses the three pillars of DDSB engagement:
Connecting with Community; Engaging with Schools; and Learning at Home. They also
answered questions of trustees.

(iv) lgnite Learning Operational Goals for 2019/2020

Director Lisa Millar provided trustees with a PowerPoint presentation on the Operational
Goals Action Plan to support the implementation of the Ignite Learning strategic priorities.
She noted that the multi-year strategic plan is in its second year of implementation in setting
direction, and highlighted the consultation with stakeholders. The Welcome Back video was
shared with trustees.

Information Items

(a) Capital Priorities Program

Associate Director David Visser introduced Christine Nancekivell, Chief Facilities Officer who
provided trustees with information regarding the Ministry of Education’s recent request for
capital projects, including child care.

(b) Draft Accommodation Plan: Trends, Issues and Future Opportunities 2019-2023

Christine Nancekivell, Chief Facilities Officer provided trustees with information regarding
short and long-term accommodation, enrolment trends and school utilization information.
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12.

13.

(€)

Education Development Charges — Proposed new Regulations

Christine Nancekivell, Chief Facilities Officer provided trustees with information regarding the
Ministry of Education’s Education Development Charges (EDC) and Notice to School Boards
Prior to Acquiring Land: Proposed Regulations. She also answered questions of trustees.

Report from the Committee of the Whole in Camera

Trustee Carolyn Morton reported on the actions of the Committee of the Whole in
Camera. Trustees dealt with personnel issues, and other issues.

Director's News from the System

Director Lisa Millar highlighted the following good news from the system:

Across Durham and DDSB school communities, students, staff, parents, guardians, and
community members gathered once again to welcome the new school year with the
annual Snowbirds flyover at Captain Michael VandenBos Public School.

Approximately 700 school and community members witnessed the Snowbirds flypast to
honour the memory of Captain Michael VandenBos, a former Snowbird, Whitby resident,
and the school’'s namesake.

The special event was attended by dignitaries and Trustee Lundquist as well as
members of Captain VandenBos’ family and close friends.

On September 3 excited staff at Elsie MacGill Public School greeted students and
parents on their first ever day of school. 431 smiling students walked through the new
shiny doors looking forward to a successful school year and to take on the world.

On August 27, DDSB Principals, Vice Principals, Superintendents, and Managers came
together for Administrators’ Day.

Staff participated in shared learning on Leadership, the launching of toolkits and website
for Culturally Relevant and Responsive Pedagogy, and discussions on digital strategies
to support innovative learning environments and equitable outcomes for students.

The new professional learning digital hub was also debuted. This was an opportunity to
set the direction and lead the implementation of the Ignite Learning priorities and goals
for the 2019-2020 school year.

Many students participated in various summer learning programs this July and August.

The DDSB offered the ESL Summer Learning Program for the second year. It was
extremely successful. 80 students enjoyed this opportunity.

8-



Regular Meeting of the Board Minutes
September 16, 2019

13.

Director’'s News from the System (Continued)

58 students and staff from West Lynde Public School community came together in the
White Oaks neighbourhood for a free Minds on Math program. They were provided with
lessons and tutoring.

This year the Indigenous Summer Learning Program hosted 82 students at Lakewoods
Public School. The program focused on engaging students with literacy and numeracy
instruction while also embedding Indigenous content and language.

16 students participated in the Great Beginnings program for Black Students at
Nottingham Public School. Through a partnership with SKD Bilingual Childcare, DDSB
Early Years and Community Partners, children were immersed in fun Culturally Relevant
and Responsive Pedagogy and impactful activities.

After lots of consultation and hard work our talented team launched a new board website
and new school websites at the end of June. The websites have a bright new look, that
is more user-friendly and responsive to all devices. There is a new calendar syncing
feature for parents and students as well as better search functionality.

This summer, two DDSB alumnus competed in the 2019 Pan American Games hosted in
Lima, Peru. Congratulations to Uxbridge Secondary School graduate Jaclyn Stelmaszyk,
who won gold in Lightweight Women’s Doubles Rowing and to Dunbarton High School
alumnus Justin Barnes who won bronze in the 49er Sailing race, and secured a spot for
Team Canada at the 2020 Olympics in Tokyo, Japan. We are so proud of you both!

This past August, students entering Grade 9 had the opportunity to get a taste of
secondary school through the Getting Ready for High School program. The program
covers a variety of topics such as: The Grade 9 English and math curriculum, study
skills, time management, and steps to success.

A positive school climate exists when all members of the school community feel safe,
included, accepted, and actively promote positive behaviours and interactions. The first
20 days of the Well-Being program is currently underway in many of our schools. Each
day is intentionally structured for educators to promote student and staff well-being, and
positive mental health.

The 3 annual Welcome Back to Learning BBQ was a success. 6,587 students, parents,
guardians and community partners attended the event. It was a wonderful day and the
perfect opportunity to engage school communities. Director Lisa Millatr thanked
Superintendent Jim Markovski and Senior Manager Stacey Lepine-Fisher for their
leadership and the Early Years Department, aka the Dream Team, for organizing a
fantastic event and all staff and Trustees who worked hard and helped to make the BBQ
a great success.
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13. Director's News from the System Continued

Dates of Significance:

Sept. 19 Special Education Advisory Committee
(SEAC) meeting

Sept. 25 Franco-Ontarian Day

Sept 23-27 DDSB Ally Week/GLSEN

Sept. 23-27 Safety Week

Sept 29-Oct 7 Navratri

Sept 29-Oct 1 Rosh Hashanah

Sept. 30 Orange Shirt Day
Disabilities Awareness Month
Dyslexia Awareness Month

October Child Abuse Prevention Month
Hispanic Heritage Month
Islamic Heritage Month
Women’s Heritage Month

Oct. 2 National Custodial Workers’ Day

Oct. 5 Engaged Parents - DBEN

Oct. 5 World Teachers’ Day

Oct. 7 Standing Committee Meeting

Oct. 9 Yom Kippur

Oct. 11 PA Day — All schools

Oct. 13-20 Sukhot

Oct. 14 Thanksgiving Day

Oct. 16 Parent Involvement Committee Meeting

Oct. 17 Special Education Advisory Committee
(SEAC) meeting

Oct. 21 Board Meeting

Oct. 21 Simchat Torah

Oct. 24 Volunteer of Distinction Awards Evening

Oct. 24 Ontario Dress Purple Day

Oct. 24 Early Childhood Educators Appreciation Day

Oct. 27 Diwali

Oct. 29 Regional School Community Council
Meeting

Oct. 31 Halloween

Oct 27-Nov 1 English as a Second Language Week

14, Recommended Actions

(a) Report: Standing Committee Meeting Minutes of September 3, 2019

Trustee Carolyn Morton presented the report of the Standing Committee Meeting of
September 3, 2019.

-8-
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(a) Report: Standing Committee Meeting Minutes of September 3, 2019 (Continued)

2019:67
Moved by Trustee Donna Edwards
Seconded by Trustee Darlene Forbes

THAT THE REPORT OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING OF
SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 BE RECEIVED.

CARRIED
(b) Report: SEAC Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2019
Trustee Donna Edwards presented the report of the SEAC meeting of May 16, 2019.
2019:68

MOVED by Trustee Donna Edwards
SECONDED by Trustee Ashley Noble

THAT THE REPORT OF THE SEAC MEETING OF MAY 16, 2019 BE RECEIVED.
CARRIED

(a) Report: Education Finance Committee Meetings of 2019

Trustee Niki Lundquist presented the report of the Education Finance Committee meetings
of 2019.

2019:69
MOVED by Trustee Niki Lundquist
SECONDED by Trustee Christine Thatcher

THAT THE REPORT OF THE EDUCATION FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF
2019 BE RECEIVED.

CARRIED

(b) Short Term Borrowing Resolution

Associate Director David Visser provided trustees with information to approve the resolution
for short-term borrowing for the 2019-2020 school year.
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(c)

Short Term Borrowing Resolution (Continued)

2019:70
MOVED by Trustee Patrice Barnes
SECONDED by Trustee Scott Templeton

(d)

THAT THE BORROWING RESOLUTION FOR THE 2019-2020 SCHOOL YEAR BE
APPROVED.

CARRIED

By-Law #9: Trustee Determination/Distribution/Governance

Director Lisa Millar and General Counsel Patrick Cotter provided trustees with
information regarding the recommendations on reviewing and updating the Board'’s
By-Laws. The also answered questions of trustees.

2019:70
MOVED by Trustee Ashley Noble
SECONDED by Trustee Niki Lundquist

(a) THAT BY-LAW #9 BE AMENDED BY DELETING THE FOLLOWING TEXT AND
SUBSTITUTING THE PROPOSED TEXT:

DELETED TEXT:

THE DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD IS A PUBLIC CORPORATE ENTITY
COMPOSED OF ELEVEN (11) TRUSTEES, ELECTED BY PUBLIC SCHOOL
RATEPAYERS FOR A FOUR-YEAR TERM TO REPRESENT THE MUNICIPALITIES
OF AJAX, BROCK/UXBRIDGE, OSHAWA, PICKERING, SCUGOG AND WHITBY.
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, AS MANDATED BY THE CURRENT EDUCATION
ACT. 1998, HAS A COLLECTIVE REGIONAL RESPONSIBILITY OF GOVERNANCE
AND POLICY MAKING FOR PUBLIC EDUCATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, ITS REGULATIONS AND OTHER RELEVANT
LEGISLATION.

THE NUMBER OF TRUSTEES ON A DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD IS DETERMINED
UNDER THE EDUCATION ACT (SECTION 58).

THE DISTRIBUTION OF TRUSTEES IS GOVERNED BY ONTARIO REGULATION
412/00 (ELECTION TO AND REPRESENTATION ON DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD).
A REPORT IS PROVIDED TO THE BOARD BY STAFF IN ADVANCE OF EACH
MUNICIPAL ELECTION, OUTLINING THE DISTRIBUTION OF TRUSTEES.

-10-
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15.

(d)

2019:71

By-Law #9: Trustee Determination/Distribution/Governance (Continued)
PROPOSED TEXT:

THE DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD (“DDSB”) IS A STATUTORY
CORPORATION UNDER SECTION 58.5 OF THE EDUCATION ACT, R.S.0, 1990,
C. E.2, (THE “EDUCATION ACT”"). THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IS THE
GOVERNING BODY OF THE DDSB. THE DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES ARE AS SET OUT IN THE EDUCATION ACT. DECISION
MAKING AUTHORITY RESTS WITH THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AS A SINGLE
BODY, NOT WITH INDIVIDUAL TRUSTEES.

THE NUMBER AND DISTRIBUTION OF ELECTED TRUSTEES IS DETERMINED
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE EDUCATION ACT AND THE
REGULATIONS THEREUNDER.

CARRIED

MOVED by Donna Edwards
Seconded by Darlene Forbes.

THAT STAFF BE INSTRUCTED TO REPORT TO THE BOARD AT THE NEXT
MEETING ON A PROPOSED CONSOLIDATED AND UPDATED GOVERNANCE
BY-LAW TO REPLACE ALL EXISTING BY-LAWS WITH A SINGLE
COMPREHENSIVE GOVERNANCE BY-LAW.

CARRIED

Information ltems

(d)

Revised Health and Physical Education Curriculum

Superintendents Silvia Peterson provided trustees with an update on the government’s
revised Health and Physical Education elementary curriculum. She also answered questions
of trustees.

(e)

Quarterly Construction and Major Projects Progress Report

Associate Director David Visser presented trustees with the Quarterly Construction and Major
Projects Progress Report.

-11-
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16. Correspondence
(a) Action Requested
There was no correspondence at this time.
(b) Other
(i) Town of Ajax
(i) Simcoe County DSB
(i)  Waterloo Region DSB
(iv) OSSTF
(v) York Region

The correspondence was listed for the information of trustees.

17. Other Business

There was no other business at this time.

18. Adjournment

2019:72
MOVED by Trustee Patrice Barnes
SECONDED by Trustee Christine Thatcher
THAT THE MEETING DOES NOW ADJOURN.

CARRIED

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:51 p.m.

Chair Secretary

«2-
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Approved

MINUTES
The Special Meeting of the Board

Monday, October 7, 2019

The Special Meeting of the Durham District School Board was held this date in the Board Room,
Education Centre, 400 Taunton Road East, Whitby.

1. Call to Order:

Chair Michael Barrett of the Durham District School Board called the meeting to order at

9:00 p.m.

Members Present:

Officials Present:

Trustees Michael Barrett, Chris Braney, Patrice Barnes, Paul
Crawford, Donna Edwards, Darlene Forbes, Niki Lundquist,
Carolyn Morton, Ashley Noble, Scott Templeton, Christine
Thatcher, Student trustees Sally Meseret, Arlene Wang, Tyler
West

Director Lisa Millar, Associate Director David Visser and Interim
Associate Director Anne Marie Laginski, Superintendents
Georgette Davis, Mohamed Hamid, Margaret Lazarus, Jamila
Maliha, Jim Markovski, Andrea McAuley, Heather Mundy, Stephen
Nevills, Silvia Peterson, Communications Manager Peter Blake
and Communications Officer Charles Senior

Recording Secretary: Karen Douglas

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest at this time.

2019:73

MOVED by Trustee Darlene Forbes
SECONDED by Trustee Niki Lundquist

THAT THE AGENDA BE APPROVED.

CARRIED
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October 7, 2019

3. 2019-2020 DDSB Budget — Compliance Adjustments and Re-Submission

Associate Director David Visser presented Trustees with compliance adjustments in
accordance with the Ministry of Education direction, in order to resubmit the 2019-2020
budget which was originally approved on June 26, 2019, for Ministry of Education

approval.

Associate Director David Visser responded to questions from Trustees.

2019:74

MOVED by Trustee Niki Lundquist
SECONDED by Trustee Darlene Forbes

THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESCIND THE MOTION FROM THE
BOARD MEETING ON JUNE 26, 2019:

2019:75

“IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE 2019-2020 DRAFT BUDGET
CONTAINING TOTAL REVENUES OF $849,178,256 AND TOTAL
EXPENSES OF $851,553,406 PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING BOARD (PSAB) STANDARDS, BE
APPROVED AS PRESENTED, PENDING MINISTER APPROVAL OF
THE IN-YEAR DEFICIT FOR COMPLIANCE PURPOSES OF
$10,883,045.”

CARRIED

MOVED by Trustee Scott Templeton
SECONDED by Trustee Donna Edwards

“THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVE THE 2019-2020
BUDGET CONTAINING TOTAL REVENUES OF $854,066,103 AND
TOTAL EXPENSES OF $855,651,464 PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING BOARD (PSAB) STANDARDS.”

CARRIED
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5. Adjournment

2019:76
MOVED by Trustee Christine Thatcher
SECONDED by Trustee Donna Edwards
THAT THE MEETING DOES NOW ADJOURN.

CARRIED

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:05 p.m.

Chairperson Secretary



16

DRAFT

MINUTES
The Regular Meeting of the Board

Monday, October 21, 2019

The Regular Meeting of the Durham District School Board was held this date in the Board Room,
Education Centre, 400 Taunton Road East, Whitby.

1. Call to Order:

The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.

Members Present:  Trustees Michael Barrett, Patrice Barnes, Paul Crawford, Donna
Edwards, Darlene Forbes, Carolyn Morton, Ashley Noble, Scott
Templeton, Christine Thatcher, Student Trustees Sally Meseret,
Arlene Wang, Tyler West

Regrets: Trustees Chris Braney, Niki Lundquist

Officials Present: Director Lisa Millar, Associate Director David Visser, Interim Associate
Director Anne Marie Laginski, Superintendents Georgette Davis,
Mohamed Hamid, Margaret Lazarus, Jamila Maliha, Jim Markovski,
Andrea McAuley, Heather Mundy, Silvia Peterson, Communications
Manager, Peter Blake and Communications Officer, Kim Brathwaite

Recording Secretary: Kim Cox

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest at this time.
3. Moment of Silence

Chair Michael Barrett advised that the Durham District School Board acknowledges that many
Indigenous Nations have longstanding relationships, both historic and modern, with the
territories upon which our school board and schools are located. Today, this area is home to
many Indigenous peoples from across Turtle Island (North America). We acknowledge that
the Durham Region forms a part of the traditional and treaty territory of the Mississaugas of
Scugog Island First Nation, the Mississauga Peoples and the treaty territory of the Chippewas
of Georgina Island First Nation.

4. O Canada
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5.

Uxbridge S.S.

Trustee Carolyn Morton welcomed The Third Avenue Jazz Ensemble from Uxbridge S.S. The
group performed two selections entitled “Jumpstart,” and “Alligator Boogaloo.” Trustee
Carolyn Morton congratulated the group, on behalf of the trustees, for their excellent
performance.

Adoption of Agenda

2019:77
MOVED by Trustee Donna Edwards
SECONDED by Trustee Ashley Noble
THAT THE AGENDA BE APPROVED.
CARRIED
2019:78
MOVED by Trustee Scott Templeton
SECONDED by Trustee Christine Thatcher
THAT THE FOLLOWING APPROVED MINUTES BE RECEIVED:
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 17, 2019;
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2019
THAT THE FOLLOWING DRAFT MINUTES BE APPROVED:
REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2019; AND
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 7, 2019.
CARRIED

And This is My Story

Chair Michael Barrett advised trustees that starting in September 2018, the Board began a
new feature entitled, This Is My Story, at every Board meeting to honour, recognize and
celebrate the identity of DDSB students, staff and families. Every person has a story that
makes them unique, and understanding the impact of identity helps us at the DDSB to
strengthen our ability and commitment to ensuring that Equity, Diversity, Identity and
Inclusion is a core priority. Tonight's edition of “And This Is My Story” featured Katie
Lafosse, teacher, Romeo Dallaire P.S.
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8.

10.

11.

Community Presentations

There were no community presentations at this time.

Ministry Memorandums — Information

Director Lisa Millar provided trustees with an update on the following:

The government recently announced $40M to mental-health initiatives. The funding includes
$25M for school boards to make mental health workers in secondary schools hired last year
permanent. Information regarding the impact of staffing on the Board has not been received.

The government is recognizing Rowan’s Law Day by investing $105,000 to expand efforts to
improve concussion safety across the province.

The government announced that the new Reciprocal Education Approach (REA) is the
result of collaboration between Ontario First Nation partners, school board associations and
the Ministry of Education. The REA framework was developed in collaboration with these
partners to help meet the unique needs of First nation students, particularly those from
Northern and remote communications.

Public Question Period

There were no public questions at this time.

Presentations/Awards

(a) Award

(i) Educational Services Staff Award 2019

Director Lisa Millar advised that at the June 2013 Board meeting, the Board approved the
establishment of an annual Educational Services Staff Award. The award is to recognize a
staff member/team affiliated with CUPE, consisting of office-clerical-technical staff, custodial
and maintenance staff, and Educational Assistants. These staff support the safe operation
of schools, keep schools clean and systems operating, and provide program support to
teachers and students. The award provides the Board with the opportunity to recognize an
educational services staff member who has made an exceptional contribution to the support
of students, schools or the growth of others in the Board.

The winner receives an award and $500 to be allocated by the winner in a manner related to
his/her project/program or initiative.
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(i) Educational Services Staff Award 2019 (Continued)

A Committee consisting of the Chair of the Board, Michael Barrett, Vice-Chair, Carolyn
Morton, Rod King, President of CUPE Local 218, and Kathryn Gooding, Chief Human
Resources Officer, reviewed nominations and have selected Wendy Butler, Head Secretary,
since retired, for her work at Elizabeth B. Phin PS as the recipient for 2019. Wendy Butler
was nominated by numerous students, parents and staff of the school.

Wendy Butler made everyone who entered E.B. Phin PS feel welcome, and was
instrumental in supporting the volunteers at the school and organizing special events
including the 75" anniversary of the school, all with a caring, people first approach. She
mentored other staff and formed excellent relationships with students and their families.

She comforted children and gave families the peace of mind knowing that their children were
in capable, caring hands.

Wendy Butler was also an excellent support to teachers and administration at the school,
championing the work they do for students. Her dedication and expertise made her a
valuable asset. Her ability to collaborate with others was commendable and she made
everyone feel important, valued and special.

As an individual who demonstrated dedication, Wendy Butler is a most deserving recipient
of the Educational Services Staff Award.

(b) Presentations

(i) DDSB Math Plan and Ministry Target Schools

Superintendent Silvia Peterson introduced Linda Ford DeCunha and Kandis Thompson,
Education Officers, Michelle Carter, Principal, Glen Street P.S. and Elizabeth Burke,
teacher, Glen Street P.S. who provided trustees with PowerPoint information on the
Elementary and Secondary Math Plan developed to support the ministry of Education Math
Strategy. They highlighted the Fundamentals of Math document, collaborative professional
learning, school based collaborative inquiry, and classroom resources. The staff from Glen
Street P.S. shared highlights of their focused leadership. They also answered questions of
trustees.

(i) Parent Reaching out Grants 2019-2020

Superintendent Heather Mundy provided trustees with information on the Parent Reaching
Out Grants (PRO Grants) for 2019-2020. She introduced Deirdre Morgenstern, Principal,
Terry F P.S. and Toufan Arieb, teacher, Terry Fox P.S. who provided trustees with a
PowerPoint presentation highlighting culturally responsive community engagement at Terry
Fox. P.S. They noted that 40% of students are ELL and 70% of students do not speak
English in their home. They highlighted the projects with a focus on the identification and
removal of barriers that prevent parents and families from participating and engaging fully in
their children’s learning ie. day and evening SCC meetings, Mom pot lucks, Dad dominoes
night. They also answered questions of trustees.

-4-
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2.

13.

(iii) Make a Difference — Re:Source Depot

Superintendent Jim Markovski introduced Claire Morgan, Manager, Early Years and Poverty
Strategy and Ana Mazhar, Durham’s Child Nutrition Project who provided trustees with an
update on the “Make a Difference (M.A.D.) — Poverty Strategy” Re:Source Depot. They
noted that the nutrition project plans, supports and delivers breakfast, lunch and snack
programs to schools along with other essentials. The depot opened on September 25 and
on average 45 educators access the site every day. They also answered questions of
trustees.

Report from the Committee of the Whole in Camera

Trustee Carolyn Morton reported on the actions of the Committee of the Whole in
Camera. Trustees dealt with personnel issues, property matters and employee relation
issues.

Director's News from the System

Director Lisa Millar highlighted the following good news from the system:

e Every September DDSB students and staff honour the memory of Terry Fox and support
cancer research, by participating in the Terry Fox Run. This year we profiled Education
Centre staff, students from Anderson CVI and Terry Fox Public School. Director Lisa
Millar thanked all school communities who participated, exhibiting their amazing spirit
with their efforts to push towards a cure for cancer.

¢ In mid-September the DDSB launched the Ignite Accessibility awareness campaign, with
the guidance of Superintendent Heather Mundy and Senior Manager of Facilities
Services Lisa Bianca. The campaign features posters, social media messages and
digital signage that focuses on using inclusive language and providing accessible
spaces for everyone. The campaign will run until the end of December.

e On September 24% and 25 students from Coronation Public School flexed their creative
muscles as they learned how to sew from the Denise Wild Sewing Studio. The activity
promotes inclusivity and innovation as all students learned how to sew from a diverse
group of people. Some of the leaders who helped the students were former professional
CFL and NFL football players.

e The following days of significance this month were recognized, Franco-Ontarion Day,
Orange Shirt Day, International Day of the Girl Child and National Custodians’ Day. All
schools recognized these days and made them even more special within our school
communities.
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13.

Director's News from the System (Continued)

The Ministry of Education has approved funding for a new school in the north Whitby
community at Taunton and Anderson. The new school will help to create better learning
environments for students and accommodate 490 student spaces and four child care
rooms. Trustees Morton and Thatcher were joined by the Parliamentary Assistant to the
Minister of Education, and local MPP for Whitby for the announcement.

Safety Week was celebrated from September 16" to 20". Superintendent Georgette
Davis and her Safe Schools team worked hard to organize and host the Annual Safety
Week Open House, including a presentation from Heads Up Durham. Students from Sir
William Stephenson Public School went to Safety Village to test out their safety skills
and Brock High School held their first-ever Workplace Safety and Emergency Response
Blitz. Everyone who participated in these events learned something new.

The DDSB will host a student poster contest this fall for children in Grades 5-8 on the
Truths and Myths of Vaping. Dan Hogan, Substance Abuse and Violence Prevention Co-
ordinator will be leading the campaign as students will be provided with current
information and will be asked to create a poster based on what they have learned.
Winners will be presented with an engraved medal at a future board meeting and win a
pizza party for their class.

From October 2™ to 4", G.L. Roberts CVI hosted the Durham Region International Film
Festival also known as DRIFF. Brock High School came on October 3™ to watch the
films about wildlife conservation. They learned why wildlife conservation is important and
how they can make a difference.

The Re:Source Depot officially opened on September 25" to schools and educators.
Tonight's presentation showcased how this amazing initiative came to life through the
leadership of the Make A Difference Steering Committee, including Superintendent Jim
Markovski, Senior Manager, Early Years, Poverty Strategy Stacey Lepine-Fisher and
Manager, Early Years and Poverty Strategy Claire Morgan.

On October 10t, Grade 6 student Eniola Olaoye from Julie Payette Public School
became Whitby’s Jr. Fire Chief of the Year. She attended the firefighter summer camp
this year and she stood out as the best candidate for the position. She will attend various
special events throughout the year as Jr. Fire Chief.

September 18" is known in Canada as National Science Reading Day. To mark the
occasion, Grade 4 students from Joseph Gould Public School in Uxbridge had a special
guest appearance from Jane Kennedy, STEM and Science Facilitator at the Durham
District School Board. Students participated in a read aloud and conducted a nature-
based experiment as part of their activities to get to know the world around them through
a scientific lens.
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13.

Director’s News from the System (Continued)

e The Durham Elementary Athletic Association cross country season is from September to
mid-October for students in Grades 3 to 8. A total of 9,720 elementary students
participated in the area qualifying meets this year with approximately 2,500 running each
day. The top eight individual runners and top two teams from each Area-Meet, advance
to the Regional Finals.

e OTIP, the Ontario Teachers Insurance Plan and the Ontario Teachers’ Federation, OTF,
have recognized Natalie Morgan from Brooklin High School with the OTIP Teaching
Award for excellence. Natalie was at our last Board Meeting as the recipient of this
year's Bruce Mather Award.

Bill Houlden was honoured with DDSB's Educational Services Staff Award last year. This
year, Bill is also the recipient of the OTIP Support Staff Worker Award. Bill is again
recognized for his caring and outstanding contributions to education.

» Interim Associate Director Anne Marie Laginski was recognized for taking on the role for
the past two months. She is finished officially this Friday, October 25" and was thanked
for her leadership and dedication.

e Student Voice Matters at DDSB and a video was shown to always remember that our
main focus is always our students.

Dates of Significance:

Oct. 21
Oct. 24
Oct. 24
Oct. 24
Oct. 27
Oct. 29
Oct. 31
November

Nov. 1
Nov. 4
Nov. 6
Nov. 7
Nov. 8
Nov. 11
Nov. 15
Nov. 16
Nov. 18

Simchat Torah

Ontario Dress Purple Day

Early Childhood Educators’ Day
Volunteer of Distinction Awards Dinner
Diwali

Regional School Community Council Meeting
Halloween

Albanian Heritage Month

Hindu Heritage Month

All Saints’ Day

Standing Committee Meeting

Take Our Kids to Work Day

Inuit Day

Indigenous Veterans Day
Remembrance Day

PA Day — All Schools

Louis Riel Day

Board Meeting
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14.

Dates of Significance (Continued)

Nov. 20 Educational Assistants’ Appreciation Day

Nov. 20 Bullying Awareness & Prevention Conference

Nov. 21 SEAC Meeting

Nov. 22 Holodomor Memorial Day

Nov. 23 Birthday of Guru Nanak Dev Ji

Nov. 25 International Day for the Elimination of
Violence Against Women

Nov. 26 Parent Involvement Committee Meeting

Recommended Actions

(a) Report: Standing Committee Meeting Minutes of October 7, 2019

Trustee Carolyn Morton presented the report of the Standing Committee Meeting of October
7,2019.

2019:79
Moved by Trustee Darlene Forbes
Seconded by Trustee Carolyn Morton

THAT THE REPORT OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING OF OCTOBER
7, 2019 BE RECEIVED.

CARRIED

(b) Report: SEAC Meeting Minutes of June 13, 2019

Trustee Donna Edwards presented the report of the SEAC meeting of June 13, 2019.
2019:80

MOVED by Trustee Donna Edwards
SECONDED by Trustee Patrice Barnes

THAT THE REPORT OF THE SEAC MEETING OF JUNE 13, 2019 BE RECEIVED.
CARRIED

(c) 2020-2021 Strategic Budget Process

Associate Director David Visser provided the Education Finance Committee meeting dates
for the development of the 2020-2021 Board budget, with the integration of multi-year
strategic planning to enhance organizational direction.
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15.

(d) 2020-2021 Strategic Budget Process (Continued)
2019:81

MOVED by Trustee Christine Thatcher
SECONDED by Trustee Ashley Noble

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE 2020-2021 MEETING SCHEDULE FOR
EDUCATION FINANCE COMMITTEE

CARRIED

(e) Notice of Motion — Creation of a New Policy for English Language Learners (ELLs)
Instruction

Superintendent Mohamed Hamid provided trustees with a Notice of Motion as follows:

THAT THE POLICY FOR ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNER (ELL) INSTRUCTION
BE APPROVED.

Information ltems

(a) Staffing & Enrolment 2019-2020

Interim Associate Director Anne Marie Laginski provided trustees with an overview of current
elementary and secondary staffing. The report included an update on Primary Class Size
(PCS) and elementary enrolment that will be submitted to the Ministry of Education prior to
October 31, 2019. She also answered questions of trustees.

(b) Coronation PS and RH Cornish PS Gifted Program Boundary Consultation Process

Associate Director David Visser introduced Christine Nancekivell, Chief Facilities Officer who
provided trustees with information to commence a public consultation process in accordance
with Regulation School Boundaries with regards to Oshawa's northern Gifted program
boundary, currently designated to Coronation PS.

(c) Education Development Charges (EDC) — Proposed new Regulations OASBO and
OPSBA Correspondence

Christine Nancekivell, Chief Facilities Officer provided trustees with information regarding
Ontario Association of School Business Officials (OASBO) response to the Ministry of
Education’s Education Development Charges (EDC) and Notice to School Boards Prior to
Acquiring Lan: Proposed Regulations and Ontario Public School Boards’ Association
(OPSBA correspondence.



25

Regular Meeting of the Board Minutes
October 21, 2019

16. Correspondence

(a) Action Requested

There was no correspondence at this time.
(b) Other
There was no correspondence at this time.

17. Other Business

There was no other business at this time.

18. Adjournment

2019:82
MOVED by Trustee Ashley Noble
SECONDED by Trustee Patrice Barnes
THAT THE MEETING DOES NOW ADJOURN.

CARRIED

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:43 p.m.

Chair Secretary

-10-
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(For Board Meeting Use)

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

MOVED by: Trustee Ashley Noble

SECONDED by:

THAT THE DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD RELEASE A PUBLIC
STATEMENT REAFFIRMING ITS COMMITMENT AS AN ALLY TO THE
LGBTQ COMMUNITY, MORE SPECIFICALLY TO TRANSGENDER AND
GENDER NON-CONFORMING STUDENTS AND STAFF.
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(For Board Meeting Use)

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

MOVED by: Trustee Paul Crawford

SECONDED by:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

THAT WHETHER, OR NOT, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IS
CONFORMING TO POLICIES ON SAFETY AND THE HANDLING

THAT WE NEED TO DETERMINE IF THE METHODS BEING USED TO
CONTROL INCIDENTS ARE WITHIN POLICIES ON SAFETY, AND
VIOLENT ACTS.

THAT THE POLICY ON SAFETY IS THAT SAFETY IS PRIOIRTY ONE, OR
THE HIGHEST PRIORITY AND THAT THE SAFETY OF ALL STUDENTS
AND STAFF IS A BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITY AND THE
RESPONSIBILITY ALSO RESTS WITH EVERYONE.

THAT STAFF SHOULD PRODUCE INFORMATION AND STATISTICS
DESCRIBING WHAT ACTIONS ARE BEING TAKEN WHEN AN INCIDENT
OCCURS, AND WHEN IT OCCURS REPEATEDLY, AND WHEN THE
SAME STUDENT(S) ARE PART OF THE REPEATED INCIDENTS.

THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES NEEDS TO DETERMINE THAT THE
HANDLING OF THESE INCIDENTS IS BEING DONE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OUR PRESENT POLICIES, OR DO THOSE POLICIES NEED TO BE
AMENDED.
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Standing Committee Public Session
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The regular meeting of the Standing Committee of the Durham District School Board was
held this date in Room 1017, Education Centre, 400 Taunton Road East, Whitby:

1.

Call to Order:
The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.

Members Present: Trustees Patrice Barnes, Michael Barrett, Chris Braney, Paul
Crawford, Donna Edwards, Darlene Forbes, Niki Lundquist,
Carolyn Morton, Ashley Noble, Scott Templeton, Christine
Thatcher, Student Trustees Sally Meseret, Arlene Wang, Tyler
West

Officials Present:  Director Lisa Millar, Superintendents Georgette Davis,
Mohamed Hamid, Margaret Lazarus, Jamila Maliha, Jim
Markovski, Andrea McAuley, Heather Mundy, Stephen Nevills,
Silvia Peterson, Communications Manager Peter Blake,
Communications Officer Kim Brathwaite

Recording Secretary: Kim Cox

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest at this time.

Motion to Approved the Agenda

2019:19
MOVED by Trustee Scott Templeton

The agenda was amended to include Items 11. (a) TCDSB Statement — Gender
Identity and Gender Expression and 11. (b) Safety Policy

THAT THE AGENDA BE APPROVED AS AMENDED.

CARRIED
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4,

Community Presentations

There were no community presentations at this time.

DDSB Presentations

(a) Leadership Implementation Update

Director Lisa Millar provided trustees with an update on the implementation of the
Ignite Learning 2018-2020 Leadership Strategic priority designed to address
succession planning challenges and to promote leadership development in the
DDSB. She introduced Michelle MacDonald, Leadership Officer who provided
trustees with a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the initiatives that have been
implemented to identify future leaders, actively develop new leaders and
responsively support current leaders. She shared a recruitment video with trustees
containing principal perspectives of why they wanted to be a leader in the DDSB.

(b) Compendium for Black Student Success

Superintendent Margaret Lazarus provided trustees with an update on the
Compendium of Action for Black Students 2018-2021, a companion resource to
the Equity and Diversity Strategic Framework. She introduced Jacqui Steer,
Chrystal Bryan, Camille Alli, Facilitator, Equity Department, Michele Liverpool,
teacher, Village Union P.S. and Keishia Facey, Principle Consultant for RFWC
Consulting Services. The group provided trustees with a PowerPoint presentation
highlighting the work accomplished and initiated by the Equity Department in
response to the actions outlined in the Compendium.

(c)  Youth Strategy/Youth Hub Update

Superintendent Jim Markovski introduced Lisa Rankin, Coordinator, Partnership
Development, Events and Youth Strategy, Eleanor Mclntosh, Principal, Ajax H.S.
and J'Mone Manhertz, Youth Liaison Worker, who provided Trustees with a
PowerPoint update on the DDSB Youth Strategy and Youth Hubs. This initiative
was developed to provide valuable community-based resources and supports to
help youth, in under-served communities, reach their full potential. Eleanor
Mclintosh shared testimonials regarding the important work that J'Mone Manhertz
has done with the Ajax H.S. family of schools. They also answered questions of
frustees.
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(d)  Trade Mission

Student trustee Sally Meseret provided trustees with an overview of the Global
Vision Junior Team Canada Trade Mission to Southeast Asia in July 2019. She
shared her journey and experiences with trustees and introduced Tessa
Vandenbroek from Anderson C.V.l. and Dennalia Fray from O’Neill C.V.l. who
stressed the importance of various opportunities for students to thrive. She noted
that the mission focusses on commercial opportunities for Canadian enterprises in
economic sectors with growth potential in the Southeast Asian marketplace and
reports on the market intelligence gathered, opportunities identified and key
contacts made. She commented on the emphasis on high quality teacher training
to adequately support students, and that funding supports are heightened for
students. There is collaboration alongside notable industries to develop
curriculum. She noted the need to share the competencies needed for students to
learn while being educated for a career. Younger students need to be aware of the
opportunities for traveling and learning abroad. A video was shared with trustees
highlighting the Trade Mission experience and she noted that opportunity is the
key to educating students.

7. Recommended Actions

There were no recommended actions at this time.

8. Information Items

(@) Student Trustee Report

Student Trustee Arlene Wang indicated that the Student Senate meeting held
earlier in the evening focused on equity, student voice, and well-being initiative
based action plans. The group worked with Steffanie Pelleboer, Mental Health
Lead to discuss the implementation of the health resources and Superintendents
Margaret Lazarus and Mo Hamid on the efforts to support student identity. A
variety of student council structures were reviewed to identify weaknesses.

Student Trustee Tyler West advised that a discussion was facilitated regarding
elLearning. OSTA-AECO introduced a report at the last meeting and senators
expressed serious concerns with the information contained in the mandate as it
relates to technology and WIFI access, learning styles, identified students in
elLearning, lack of teacher to student participation, and a lack of understanding on
what is happening with the eLearning mandate in community. Students are not in
support of the requirement of four eLearning credits and would like to see it
reversed.

-3-
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(b)  Student Trustee Report (Continued)

Student Trustee Sally Meseret commented on the recent OSTA fall general
meeting. Preparing for the role of student trustee was a discussion topic, and
addresses were given by Nancy Naylor, Deputy Minister of Education, on
engaging students from across the Province regarding the direction of Education,
and Norah Marsh, CEO of EQAO regarding the revisions to EQAO. There was an
opportunity for students to learn more and grow more in their roles.

Trustee Donna Edwards indicated that she would like the students’ comments to
discuss them at the upcoming OPSBA Board of Director's meeting on November
25, as the group will be meeting with local MPPs.

(c)  Art of Public Dialogue: Hosting Conversations on Race and Identity

Superintendent Jamila Maliha shared with trustees highlights of Art of Public
Dialogue: Hosting Conversations on Race and Identity Training, Part 1.

(d) Optional Continuous Learning at Home

Superintendent Silvia Peterson provided trustees with information about learning
at home on days when learning is interrupted; such as inclement weather and bus
cancellations.

(e) C.E. Broughton P.S. Modified School Year Consultation Process, Town of
Whitby

Superintendent Georgette Davis introduced Christine Nancekivell, Chief Facilities
officer who provided trustees with information to commence a public consultation
process in accordance with Regulation School Boundaries with regards to
collapsing C.E. Broughton P.S.’s modified school year. They also answered
questions of trustees.

1] School Trip Supervision Requirement Review

Director Lisa Millar introduced Paul Brown, Operations Officer, who provided
trustees with handout information as it relates to the school trip supervision
requirement review. He also answered questions of trustees.
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(f) OPSBA Report

Trustee Donna Edwards advised that the OPSBA Central East Regional meeting
took place at the Education Centre this past Saturday. The group discussed
legislative updates, labour, and ongoing issues amongst boards. The next Board
of Directors’ meeting is scheduled to be held on November 25. The day is an
advocacy day where Boards are invited to meet with MPPs to talk about education
issues across the Province.

9. Committee Reports

There were no Committee reports at this time.

10. Correspondence

There was no correspondence at this time.

11.  Other Business

(a) Toronto Catholic DSB

Trustee Ashley Noble advised that the Toronto Catholic DSB is proposing that its
updated code of conduct will not include protection for discrimination based on
gender identity or gender expression. She noted that this is disappointing with all
the equity work being done in the Board. She asked that the Board reaffirm its
commitment as an ally to the LGBTQ community, and more specifically to
transgender and gender non-conforming students and staff.

THAT THE DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD RELEASE A PUBLIC
STATEMENT REAFFIRMING ITS COMMITMENT AS AN ALLY TO THE
LGBTQ COMMUNITY, MORE SPECIFICALLY TO TRANSGENDER AND
GENDER NON-CONFORMING STUDENTS AND STAFF.

(b)  Safety Policy

Trustee Paul Crawford presented the following motion:

() THAT WHETHER, OR NOT, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IS
CONFORMING TO POLICIES ON SAFETY AND THE HANDLING
OF VIOLENT INCIDENTS WITHIN THE DDSB.
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(c)  Safety Policy (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

THAT WE NEED TO DETERMINE IF THE METHODS BEING
USED TO CONTROL INCIDENTS ARE WITHIN POLICIES ON
SAFETY, AND VIOLENT ACTS.

THAT THE POLICY ON SAFETY IS THAT SAFETY IS PRIOIRTY
ONE, OR THE HIGHEST PRIORITY AND THAT THE SAFETY OF
ALL STUDENTS AND STAFF IS A BOARD OF TRUSTEES
RESPONSIBILITY AND THE RESPONSIBILITY ALSO RESTS
WITH EVERYONE.

THAT STAFF SHOULD PRODUCE INFORMATION AND
STATISTICS DESCRIBING WHAT ACTIONS ARE BEING TAKEN
WHEN AN INCIDENT OCCURS, AND WHEN IT OCCURS
REPEATEDLY, AND WHEN THE SAME STUDENT(S) ARE PART
OF THE REPEATED INCIDENTS.

THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES NEEDS TO DETERMINE THAT
THE HANDLING OF THESE INCIDENTS IS BEING DONE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OUR PRESENT POLICIES, OR DO THOSE
POLICIES NEED TO BE AMENDED.

Trustees discussed the motion and it will be presented at the Board meeting
scheduled to be held on November 18, 2019.

Director Lisa Millar confirmed that reports are received bi-annually in January and
June and they outline current strategies, interventions, processes, and include an
info graphic. The Incident Ad Hoc Steering Committee meets during the year and
monitors information between the reporting periods.

Trustee Niki Lundquist asked that the next report include a flowchart of processes
regarding intervention.

Trustee Paul Crawford requested that the report also include statistics on
litigation, injuries, staff injuries, police involvement, suspensions and expulsions.
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12.  Adjournment

2019:20
MOVED by Trustee Niki Lundquist.

THAT THE MEETING DOES NOW ADJOURN.

CARRIED

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:25 p.m.

Chair Secretary
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REPORT OF THE SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Thursday, September 19, 2019, 6:30 P.M.

A meeting of the Special Education Advisory Committee was held this date in the
Education Centre, 400 Taunton Road East, Whitby.

ROLL CALL:

Claudine Burrell, Autism Ontario — Durham Chapter

Craig Cameron, Member At Large

Tara Culley, Durham Down Syndrome Association

Elizabeth Daniel, Ontario Association for Families of Children with Communication
Disorders

Rowin Jarvis, Learning Disabilities Association of Durham Region

Kathy Kedey, VOICE for Deaf and Hard of Hearing Children (left at 7:40 p.m.)

Eva Kyriakides, Association for Bright Children (ABC) (SEAC Chair)

Carolyn McLennon, Member At Large

Hanah Nguyen, Easter Seals Ontario

Trustees: Donna Edwards Christine Thatcher

Staff: Superintendent Andrea McAuley
Special Education Officer Kyla McKee

Recording Secretary: Diane Kent

Call to Order:

SEAC Chair Eva Kyriakides called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.

Welcome Guests:

SEAC Chair Eva Kyriakides welcomed special guests: Jack Barclay, Elementary
Representative; Michelle Monk and Russ Davidson, Secondary Representatives; Heather
Mundy, Superintendent of Education and Arlene Wang, Student Trustee.

SEAC Chair Eva Kyriakides advised that the Durham District School Board acknowledges
that many Indigenous Nations have longstanding relationships, both historic and modern,
with the territories upon which our school board and schools are located. Today, this area
is home to many Indigenous peoples from across Turtle Island. We acknowledge that
the Durham Region forms a part of the traditional and treaty territory of the Mississaugas
of Scugog Island First Nation, the Mississauga Peoples and the treaty territory of the
Chippewas of Georgina Island First Nation. It is on these ancestral and treaty lands that
we teach, learn and live.

minsept19
ek:dk Page | 1
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Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont'd)
September 19, 2019

Inclusive Student Services Report — September 2019 (cont’d)

The work of Inclusive Student Services has an annual budget (2019-2020) of $119 million.
This includes approved funding at $3.3 million above the funded envelope. With an
emphasis on direct student support, 97% of the budget is allocated to staffing (salaries
and benefits) for groups including: SERTSs, Special Education Class Teachers,
Educational Assistants, and Professional Support Services Personnel (PSSP). The
supply coverage costing for the above staff are also accounted for. In addition, $2.6 million
is enveloped for Specialized Equipment Allocation.

The Inclusive Student Services clerical team support communication with families,
facilitate support to all team members in the department (calendars, team meeting
organization), ensure SEA (Specialize Equipment Allocation) equipment is ordered and
received in a timely manner, and tracks the confidential, individual student based
information related to consents, IPRCs and other service related documentation.

Some specific examples from the work of the team:

e Connect with families calling the Education Centre for information or connection with
service professionals

e SEA Tech and Non-Tech - receive requests and prepare appropriate documentation
to fulfill the requests put forward by service professionals in order to enhance the
learning of our special education students
Administrative organization to facilitate the startup of the Gifted Testing Process
Administrative organization to facilitate the startup BMS training courses for staff who
interact with our special education students

e Preparing the master caseload document for use by service professionals across all
Inclusive Student Services departments

e Preparing accurate caseload assignment documents for individual service
professionals.

e Executing the approved PD Calendar which provides training by members of the
Inclusive Student Services team as well as for members of our team.

e All members of the clerical team, one capacity or another, assist with the onboarding
of new staff

e On-going confidential document management (includes scanning and purging) while
adhering to a strict retention schedule and fulfilling special requests as required

e Monitor changes at the schools of key staff (SERTs and Spec Ed Department
Heads) and updating important distribution lists accessed by many within the
department

e Update and ensure timely PowerTPM access is provided for new staff (SERTs and
ISS staff)

Speech Language Pathology (SLP)/Hearing Services

The Speech-Language and Hearing teams are getting the year started by collaborating
with school teams and families to help students have a smooth transition back to
school. In partnership with the educational audiologist, the hearing resource teachers are
setting up amplification devices and systems to maximize students’ communication
access. Speech-language pathologists are identifying the priorities for communication
and transition needs within schools, focusing on students who have autism and other
complex profiles.
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Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont'd)
September 19, 2019

Inclusive Student Services Report — September 2019 (cont’'d)

Speech Language Pathology (SLP)/Hearing Services (cont’'d)

ASL interpreters and deaf-blind intervenors providing direct support are building
relationships with students and partnering with classroom educators to foster inclusive
school relationships and environments. We are all excited and enthusiastic about this
school year!

Psychological Services

Psychological Services staff returned to work to continue fulfilling their commitment to the
Operational Goals of the DDSB and, therein, their five service functions of. assessment,
consultation, direct service, crisis response and capacity building.

Psychological Services started the year with four new staff members who have come to
the DDSB with excellent skills in applied behaviour analysis, as well as other essential
clinical skills.

Many Psychological Services staff began the school year by assisting schools in
supporting the transitions of students with various and complex learning, developmental,
social and behavioral needs, both within DDSB classrooms and in partnership with our
community service providers.

Most Psychological Services staff have spent time getting re-certified as BMS trainers;
they will work toward supporting the revised model of staff training in non-violent crisis
intervention.

Along with the latter, Psychological Services staff have set priorities in supporting system
Capacity Building in suicide risk assessment, mental health first aid and violence/threat
risk assessment. Staff also will be working to re-visit the DDSB document, Standards and
Guidelines for the Use of Behavioural Procedures, by using the D2L format to update the
'essentials’ of these guidelines for DDSB staff.

Staff will be working within an integrated framework to formulate an Educator's Guide to
Understanding and Programming for Students with Learning Disabilities, again using the
D2L platform.

Finally, Psychological Services providing services in high schools will be piloting a new
structure of service provision, with key emphasis on accountability and attuned mental
health supports.

Staff are looking forward to another productive year in service to students!
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Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont'd)
September 19, 2019

Inclusive Student Services Report — September 2019 (cont’d)

Inclusive Student Services Support to New SERTs (cont’d)

Already this year, the Inclusive Student Services Department has supported new SERTs
by offering our New to SERT workshop in our Summer Institute sessions. Twenty new
SERTSs attended this two-day workshop to learn about the intricacies of the role. It was
important to make early connections with these vital staff to some of our most complex
students.

We will be offering Mentor/Mentee supports in the coming weeks to foster relationships
and networks in order to support SERTs in the early years of the role. We appreciate
experienced SERTS taking the time to share their expertise.

Our first SERT Capacity Building Session was on September 12th, and was attended by
189 SERTSs in the system. The structure of our SERT Capacity Sessions are such that
SERTSs can self-direct their PD by choosing break out sessions that best fit their learning
needs. New this year, we are offering a break out session specifically for new SERTSs to
address their specific questions and to guide their priorities at different times of the year.

The Heart of Coaching Resource has been distributed to New SERTs. This is a resource
that was shared to the system two years ago and is relevant to the coaching and
leadership role that SERTs have in building capacity in their schools.

Specific training was provided by our Inclusive Technology team to our new SERTs on
Sept 10th and again on Sept 24th on PowerTPM, our database that collects and organizes
our IPRC and |IEP data.

Finally, on September 20th, PD will be provided for our teachers and SERTs new to
supporting gifted learners.

Presentation:

lgnite Accessibility

Superintendent Heather Mundy provided SEAC members with a PowerPoint and hand-
out information on the DDSB’s Ignite Accessibility — Multi-Year Accessibility Plan 2019-
2021. The PowerPoint presentation also highlighted the Ignite Accessibility Annual Status
Report and the DDSB Accessibility Guide. Superintendent Mundy also mentioned that
the DDSB’s Accessibility for Everyone campaign will commence on Monday, September
23, 2019. Superintendent Heather Mundy also answered questions of committee
members.

Trustee Donna Edwards informed SEAC members that the Accessibility for Ontarians with
Disabilities Act (AODA) Alliance is making public a draft Framework for what the promised
Education Accessibility Standard should include for students in schools between
kindergarten and Grade 12. Trustee Edwards will forward the draft document for
committee members to review and provide feedback.
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Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont'd)
September 19, 2019

Business Arising from the Minutes:
e Update: SEAC Self-Advocacy Event

Rowin Jarvis from Learning Disabilities Association of Durham Region will make inquiries
regarding the availability of a guest speaker for the event. Once the speaker has been
confirmed that will then decide the date. Currently looking at the last week of October or
first week of November. The location will be a centrally located secondary school. A face
to face or teleconference meeting was offered to SEAC members to finalize details.

Scheduled Discussion Period:

The open discussion period was used to discuss the following topic:
e SEAC 2019-2020 Goals & Action Items
SEAC members participated in an interactive activity of speaking with each other in two

circles (inside/outside) to discuss three topics with three different partners. The topics of
discussion were:

e What are you passionate about in supporting families in Durham
e What is one big question that you have for this year?
e What does success for SEAC at the end of the year look like to you?

These discussions helped committee members identify goals and track successes.

Reports:

Administration:
Superintendent Andrea McAuley

Director's Welcome Back Video

Director Lisa Millar's Welcome Back and Direction Setting Video was shared with SEAC
members.

Focus on Deep Learning

Fundamentally transforming teaching and learning in classrooms and schools
Placing teaching and learning at the center of the work
Stay the course, but change the execution with a special focus on Learning is the
Work

e A focus on proportional outcomes for all students

Inclusive Student Services — Service In, Service Out

e 2019-2020 school year, opportunity to revamp the delivery service model
o Leadership Team looking after individuals within the department by offering
professional development in secondary trauma training

Page | 8
minsept18
ek:dk



57

Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont'd)

September 19, 2019
Reports: (cont’d)

Superintendent Andrea McAuley (cont’d)

Implementing the lgnite Learning Priorities
For our DDSB Students and Staff

SUCCESS

Gap Closing and Interventions for Students
with Learning Disabilities (LD)
Differentiating Programming to Support

EQUITY

Integrated Transition Planning for Youth
with Developmental Disabilities

Early Intervention and Assessment

Students with Autism

WELL-BEING ENGAGEMENT

Reduce Student Persistent Absence Rates SEAC Community Presence and
Secondary Trauma Training Engagement

Secondary Student Voice — Inclusive
Programming

LEADERSHIP

Inclusive Student Services

Professional Development and Leadership
Deepen School Administrator skills for
Leadership of Inclusive Programming
Behaviour Management Systems Training
for Administrators

INNOVATION

Educational Assistant Device Program and
elLearning Focus

Create on-line professional development
modules with focus on differentiated
programming

2019/2020 Focus —Students with

1) Learning Disabilities

2) Autism

Other Department Initiatives Supporting the Six Priorities:

Professional Clinical Assessments
Kindergarten EA Transitional Pilot
Secondary Trauma Training
Friday Forums

Revised: Supporting Many Paths to Success

Children and Youth in Need of Protection
Special Education Services School Support Plans

This is a revision of document previously titled, “Pathway to IPRC".

Revisions reflected in this document include:

« Emphasis on early intervention, assessment, ongoing program monitoring and
revision, aligning with the Ontario Human Rights Commission, “Policy on accessible
education for students with disabilities” (March 2018)

Shift to asset based language

e Consultation with appropriate community partners

This document was shared at the SERT Capacity Building that was held on September

12, 2019.
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Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont’d)
September 19, 2019

Reports: (cont’d)
Board:

Trustee Donna Edwards informed SEAC members that the Board of Trustees received
presentations on the Engagement Strategic Plan and Ignite Learning Operational Goals
for 2019/2020. They also received information on the revised Health and Physical
Education Curriculum; Capital Priorities and the Draft Accommodation Plan: Trends,
Issues and Future Opportunities 2019-2023 at the Board Meeting on Monday, September
16, 2019.

Association Reports:

Autism Ontario — Durham Chapter

The Autism Ontario — Durham Chapter is encouraging individuals, families, businesses
and community service providers to submit their ideas for Social Learning Opportunities
(SLO). They are designed for children and youth with ASD 18 years of age and younger,
their families and caregivers. Autism Ontario Durham Chapter can assist with subsidizing
events.

Learning Disabilities Association of Durham Region (LDADR)

The Learning Disabilities Association of Durham Region (LDADR) will be hosting a
presentation on “Improving the Odds: Implementing the IEP” on Thursday, September
26, 2019 from 7:30 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. The LDADR Annual General Meeting for members
will take place from 7:00 — 7:30 p.m. prior to the presentation at the Brooklin Community
Centre.

Correspondence/Attachments:

e Greater Essex County DSB
e Hastings and Prince Edward DSB

Questions and Comments:

Discussions took place regarding correspondence writing to the Ministry and if there was
a more effective approach. The Minister's Advisory Council on Special Education
(MACSE) was another course of action as this committee makes recommendations
directly to the Minister of Education. It was agreed upon to place MACSE on the October
SEAC agenda, under item # 8 b) Scheduled Discussion Period for further idea sharing.
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Report Special Education Advisory Committee (cont'd)

September 19, 2019
13. Celebrations and Success:

Tara Culley participated and completed the “Tuff Mudder” endurance obstacle course
race that was held on September 14 — 15, 2019 in Toronto.

Eva Kyriakides, younger daughter has joined the Improv Club at high school and her older
daughter has set her academic accommodations with Student Accessibility Services at

the University of Guelph.

14, Next S.E.A.C. meeting — October 17, 2019 in Room 2020.

15. Adjournment:

That the meeting does now adjourn at 8:30 p.m.

MOVED BY: Tara Culley

SECONDED BY: Trustee Donna Edwards

CARRIED

Report respectfully submitted by:
Eva Kyriakides, SEAC Chair
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ACTION PLAN

ACTIVITY RESPONSIBILITY COMPLETION
To seek guest speaker for Self- SEAC Member Rowin Jarvis By next SEAC
Advocacy Event. meeting.
Inside/Out Activity — Question #2, SEAC Committee Members By next SEAC
“What is one big question that you meeting.
have for this year?” Responses to be
shared/e-mail to SEAC Chair Eva
Kyriakides.
Review and provide feedback of the :
AODA Alliance’s Draft Framework for BENG Donnitee Mompar Byr?"l(:attiigE e
the K-12 Education Accessibility '
Standard to Trustee Donna Edwards.
MACSE — October SEAC Agenda - Administrative Assistant By next SEAC
Scheduled Discussion Period. el
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Greater Essex County District School Board

451 Park St. W., P.O. Box 210, Windsor, ON N9A 6K1 - 518-2656-3200

July 5, 2019

Honorable Lisa M. Thompson
Minister of Education

22" Floor Mowat Block

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON

M7A 1L2

Dear Minister Thompson,

The Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) of the Greater Essex County
District School Board is writing in support of Bill 64, Noah and Gregory’s Law,
Transition to Adult Developmental Services and Supports. The Act recently
passed its second reading and has been referred to the Standing Committee on
Regulations and Private Bills. We ask that you strongly and actively support this
Bill to ensure its passage to a third reading as soon as possible.

Students with developmental disabilities, along with their families, already face
many challenges regarding crucial services and the cessation of these supports
at age 18 causes increased and unnecessary burdens. We ask that you support
the implementation of Bill 64 to improve their transition to adult services.

Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Sincerely,

M P
Mary-Ann Fuduric, Chair
Special Education Advisory Committee

Greater Essex County District School Board

CC: Chairs of Ontario Special Education Advisory Committees
CC: GECDSB Board of Trustees

RECEIVED AUG 19201

Building Tomorrow Together!
www.publicboard.ca
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Greater Essex County District School Board

451 Park St. W., P.O. Box 210, Windsor, ON N9A 6K1 - 519-255-3200

July 5, 2019

Hon. Lisa M. Thompson, Minister of Education
Ministry of Education

Mowat Block 22™ Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, Ontario M7A 1L2

Dear Minister Thompson,

| am writing to you today on behalf of the members of the Greater Essex County District School Board's
(GECDSB) Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC). Our SEAC includes 8 Parent Associations,
who represent thousands of the families in the Essex County Region.

In the fall of 2018, the members of our SEAC were made aware of the changes to funding that were
announced by the Deputy Minister of Education in August of 2018. As a group whose responsibility
includes advocating for the rights of all children with special needs in our region, we were disheartened
and deeply disappointed by the Ministry of Education’s decision to reduce the increase to the Special
Incidence Portion that was previously announced for the 2018-2019 school year. Schools have a legal
obligation to accommodate every child with a disability. When a student requires full time 2:1 staffing,
how to pay for it should never have to be the board's primary concern. It should be the safety and
dignity of that child, and the safety of staff and other students. The claw back of the additional funding
for the boards who mostly already operate in a negative special education budget is unconscionable.
And the lack of flexibility around the rules of the SIP grants often prevents them from being sought.

The GECDSB already has to use more funding than provided by the Ministry of Education through
Special Education Grants to offset the costs associated with Special Education Services. The claw
back of the SIP increase announced for the 2018-2019 school year only serves to increase the Special
Education deficit. With this deficit, more children will be affected. As a SEAC, we are deeply concerned
by the direction that this government is taking regarding funding for our most vulnerable students. As
the Auditor General's Report highlights, the Ministry of Education’s “funding formula uses out-of-date
benchmarks and is due for an external review.”

We urge the Minister to reconsider this decision to reduce funding for these grants, and consider fully
funding this necessary accommodation for our most vulnerable, complex and challenging students.

Sincerely,

A Pdarre

Mary-Ann Fuduric, Chair
Special Education Advisory Committee
Greater Essex County District School Board

CC: GECDSB Board of Trustees RECEIVED AUG 19 2019
CC: Chairs of Ontario Special Education Advisory Committees

Building Tomorrow Together!
www.publicboard.ca
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Greater Essex County District School Board

451 Park St. W., P.O. Box 210, Windsor, ON N9A 6K1 - 519-255-3200

July 5, 2019

Hon. Lisa M. Thompson, Minister of Education
Ministry of Education

Mowat Block 22™ Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, Ontario M7A 1L.2

Dear Minister Thompson,

| am writing to you today on behalf of the members of the Greater Essex County District School Board'’s
(GECDSB) Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC). Our SEAC includes eight Parent
Associations, who represent thousands of the families in the Essex County Region.

We are very concerned about the recent changes to the provincial funding model for class size
averages and with the announcement of mandatory e-learning courses. The impact that these changes
will have on students with special education needs will be devastating. Students with special education
needs require significant in-class support to have meaningful and equitable access to education.
Mandatory e-learning courses removes the critical component to success, a physical teacher who
provides support and allows for meaningful connections, which are important to student well-being and
resiliency. Furthermore, placing the burden of:access to technology and the internet for these courses
is inequitable. Students who live in remote areas of Windsor-Essex County or those without access to
the necessary technology will be disadvantaged.

The drastic increase to class-size average will provide less support to students with special education
needs and those identified as at-risk for learning difficulties. The increase to class sizes is likely to
reduce course options, sections, and specialized courses that support students with learning needs.
More students will equate to less time that teachers have to assist students identified as at-risk or those
with Individual Education Plans.

We urge the Minister to reconsider this decision to reduce funding for these grants, and consider fully
funding this necessary accommodation for our most vulnerable, complex and challenging students.

Sincerely,

e

Mary-Ann Fuduric, Chair
Special Education Advisory Committee
Greater Essex County District School Board

CC: GECDSB Board of Trustees
CC: Chairs of Ontario Special Education Advisory Committees

RECEIVED AuG 192019

Building Tomorrow Together!
www.publicboard.ca
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Greater Essex County District School Board

451 Park St. W., P.O. Box 210, Windsor, ON N9A 6K1 - 5198-255-3200

July 5, 2019

Honourable Lisa M. Thompson
Minister of Education

22n Floor, Mowat Block

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Minister Lisa Thompson:

‘The Greater Essex County District School Board's (GECDSB) Special Education
Advisory Committee (SEAC) would like to acknowledge and support Bill 44 to
amend the Education Act to provide for board activities to promote awareness
and understanding of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD), including best
practices to support pupils who may have FASD. Currently, the GECDSB
provides an annual professional development session each fall for teachers who
have students in their classrooms identified with FASD. However, any additional
professional development supports or awareness initiatives from the Ontario
Ministry of Education would be beneficial to our educators who work dlllgently to
support all students on a daily basis.

Sincerely,

M P
Mary-Ann Fuduric, Chair
Special Education Advisory Committee

Greater Essex County District School Board

CC: Chairs of Ontario Special Education Advisory Committees

RECEIVED Au6 19 2019

Building Tomorrow Together!
www.publicboard.ca
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Appendix A

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Durham District School Board
are the responsibility of the Board's management and have been prepared in
accordance with the Financial Administration Act, supplemented by Ontario Ministry of
Education memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial
Administration Act, as described in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of
estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting
the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.

The Board's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly
authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements,
and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets with the external auditors to review the
consolidated financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or
internal control matters prior to the Board's approval of the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, Chartered
Professional Accountants, independent external auditors appointed by the Board. The
accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope
of their examination and their opinion on the Board's consolidated financial
statements.

Director of Education Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Trustees of Durham District School Board

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Durham District School
Board (the Entity), which comprise:

¢ the consolidated statement of financial position as at August 31, 2019

o the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year
then ended

+ the consolidated statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended
« the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

+ and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including 2 summary of
significant accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Entity as at August 31, 2019, and
its consolidated results of operations, its consolidated changes in net debt and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the basis of
accounting described in note 1 to the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our auditors' report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.



/8

Appendix A

Page 2

Emphasis of Matter - Financial Reporting Framework

We draw aftention to note 1 in the financial statements, which describes the applicable
financial reporting framework and the purpose of the financial statements.

As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the financial reporting framework described in note 1 in
the financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Entity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.
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We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstaterent of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intenal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
hasis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group Entity to express an opinion on
the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

DRAFT

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Vaughan, Canada

November 15, 2019
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DRAFT consolidated Statement of Financial Position
August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018
2019 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,161,537 $ 60,256,763
Accounts receivable (note 2) 331,359,868 326,558,408
369,511,405 386,815,171
Financial liabilities
Temporary borrowing (note 8) 26,300,000 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 43,058,477 54,322,636
Deferred revenue (note 3) 11,317,576 10,022,925
Retirement and other employee future
benefits (note 5) 41,612,814 41,943,046
Net debenture debt and capital loans {note 6) 234,066,550 259,857,516
Deferred capital contributions (note 4) 737,911,627 716,743,307
1,094,266,944 1,082,889,330
Net debt (724,755,539) (696,074,159)
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (note 10) 969,051,094 943,106,397
Inventory and other assets 16,009,958 11,942,236
985,061,052 955,048,633
Contractual obligations (note 14)
Accumulated surplus (note 11) $ 260,305,513 $ 258,974,474

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DRAFT consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
Year ended August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018
Budget Actual Actual
2019 2019 2018
{note 15)
Revenues:
Local taxation $ 174,607,001 $ 186,594,959 175,671,729
Provincial grants - grants for
student needs 638,516,104 641,312,307 622,430,380
Provincial grants - other 2,316,151 5,852,872 12,033,671
Federal grants and fees 792,666 2,208,197 2,143,443
School-generated funds 18,434 437 18,251,789 18,343,934
Individual tuition fees 934,724 1,508,666 1,489,404
Other fees and revenue 10,966,002 14,602,210 14,168,393
Investment income:
Operations 500,000 1,026,233 1,363,745
Sinking fund assets (note 7) 7,515,710 8,047,128 8,714,212
854,582,795 879,404,361 856,358,911
Expenses (note 9):
Instruction 653,700,850 674,993,870 642,777,553
Administration 17,821,899 20,446,136 19,489,008
School-funded activities 18,434,437 18,384,873 18,328,291
Transportation 22,360,129 22,812,643 21,852,008
Pupil accommodation 130,179,134 130,313,928 128,686,642
Other 5,895,186 11,121,872 16,253,809
848,491,635 878,073,322 847,487,401
Annual surplus 6,091,160 1,331,039 8,871,510
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 257,645,258 258,974 474 250,102,964

Accumulated surplus, end of year (note 11)

$ 263,736,418

$ 260,305,513

$ 258,974,474

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DRAFT Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt
Year ended August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018
2019 2018

Annual surplus $ 1,331,039 $ 8,871,510
Amortization of tangible capital assets 45,508,973 41,451,232
Change in non-financial assets' inventory

and other assets (4,067,722) (502,240)
Net loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 80,420
Purchase of tangible capital assets (71,453,670) (121,425,859)
Increase in net debt (28,681,380) (71,524,937)
Net debt, beginning of year (696,074,159) (624,549,222)
Net debt, end of year $ (724,755,539) $ (696,074,159)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Appendix A
DRAFT Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018
2019 2018
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 1,331,039 8,871,510
Items not involving cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 45,508,973 41,451,232
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (38,742,688) (35,091,730)
Net loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 80,420
Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,801,460) (6,104,251)
Inventory and other assets (4,067,722) (502,240)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {11,264,059) 2,973,342
Deferred revenue 1,294,651 (5,147,722)
Retirement and other employee future benefits (330,232) {5,075,550)
{11,071,498) 1,455,011
Capital activities:
Purchase of tangible capital assets (71,453,670) (121,425,859)
Financing activities:
Temporary borrowing 26,300,000 -
Debt repaid and sinking fund contributions (17,743,838) (11,222,463)
Increase in sinking fund assets (8,047,128) (8,714,212)
Additions to deferred capital contributions 59,910,908 97,416,866
60,419,942 77,480,191
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (22,105,228) {(42,490,657)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 60,256,763 102,747,420
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 38,151,537 $ 60,256,763

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended August 31, 2019

1.  Significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with the
basis of accounting described below:

(a) Basis of accounting:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial
Administration Act, supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education (the "Ministry")
memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act.

The Financial Administration Act requires that the consolidated financial statements be
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles determined by the relevant Ministry
of the Province of Ontario (the "Province"). A directive was provided by the Ministry within
memorandum 2004:B2 requiring school boards to adopt Canadian public sector accounting
standards commencing with their year ended August 31, 2004 and that changes may be
required to the application of these standards as a result of regulation.

In 2011, the government passed Ontario Regulation 395/11, Accounting Policies and
Practices Public Entities ("Regulation 395/11") of the Financial Administration Act. The
regulation requires that contributions received or receivable for the acquisition or
development of depreciable tangible capital assets and contributions of depreciable
tangible capital assets for use in providing services be recorded as deferred capital
contributions and be recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement of operations
and accumulated surplus over the periods during which the asset is used to provide service
at the same rate that amortization is recognized in respect of the related asset. The
regulation further requires that if the net book value of the depreciable tangible capital asset
is reduced for any reason other than depreciation, a proportionate reduction of the deferred
capital contribution along with a proportionate increase in the revenue be recognized. For
Ontario school boards, these contributions include government transfers, externally
restricted contributions and, historically, property taxation revenue.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued):

The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 395/11 are significantly different from
the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which requires that:

{i) government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be
recoghized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the
eligibility criteria have been met in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standard
PS3410, Government Transfers;

(i) l externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the
resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with Public
Sector Accounting Standard PS3100, Restricted Assets and Revenues; and

(iii) property taxation revenue be reported as revenue when received or receivable in
accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standard PS3510, Tax Revenue.

As a result, revenue recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and
accumulated surplus and certain related deferred revenue and deferred capital
contributions would be recorded difierently under Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

(b} Reporting entity:

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and
accumulated surplus of the reporting entity. The reporting entity comprises all
organizations accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to
Durham District School Board (the "Board") and which are controlled by the Board.

School-generated funds, which include the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and
accumulated surplus of various organizations that exist at the school level and which are
controlled by the Board are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these
organizations are eliminated.

(c) Trust funds:

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Board are not included in the
consolidated financial statements as they are not controlled by the Board.

6



86

Appendix A

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued):
(d) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments. Short-term investments are highly liquid, subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value and have a short maturity term of 90 days or less.

(e) Investments:

Temporary investments consist of marketable securities which are liquid short-term
investments with maturities of between three months and one year at the date of
acquisition, and are carried on the consolidated statement of financial position at the lower
of cost or market value.

Long-term investments consist of investments that have maturities of more than one year.
Long-term investments are recorded at cost and assessed regularly for permanent
impairment.

(f) Deferred revenue:

Certain amounts are received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may
only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the delivery of specific services and
transactions. These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related
expenditures are incurred or services performed.

(g) Deferred capital contributions:

Contributions received or receivable for the purpose of acquiring or developing a
depreciable tangible capital asset for use in providing services, or any contributions in the
form of depreciable tangible assets received or receivable for use in providing services, are
recorded as deferred capital contributions when the asset has been acquired as required
by Regulation 395/11. These amounts are recognized as revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations and accumulated surplus at the same rate and over the same
period that the related tangible capital asset is amortized. The following items fall under
this category:

(i} government transfers received or receivable for capital purpose;
(i) other restricted contributions received or receivable for capital purpose; and

(iiiy property taxation revenue which were historically used to fund capital assets.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(h) Retirement and other employee future benefits:

The Board provides defined retirement and other future benefits to specified employee
groups. These benefits include pension, life insurance, health care benefits, dental
benefits, retirement gratuity, worker's compensation and long-term disability benefits.

As part of ratified labour collective agreements for unionized employees that bargain
centrally and ratified central discussions with the Principals and Vice-Principals
Associations, the following Employee Life and Health Trusts ("ELHTs") were established in
2016-2017; Elementary Teachers' Federation of Ontario ("ETFO"), ETFO-EW and Ontario
Secondary Schoo! Teachers' Federation ("OSSTF"). The following ELHTs were
established in 2017-2018. Canadian Union of Public Employees ("CUPE"), Education
Workers' Benefits Trust ("EWBT") and Ontario Non-union Education Trust ("ONE-T"} for
non-unionized employees including principals and vice-principals. The ELHTs provide
health, dental and life insurance benefits to teachers (excluding daily occasional teachers),
education workers (excluding casual and temporary staff), and other school board staff and
retired individuals from the school board's participation date into the ELHTs. These
benefits are being provided through a joint governance structure between the
bargaining/employee groups, school board trustees associations and the Government of
Ontario. The Board no longer administers health, life and dental plans for their employees
and instead are required to fund the ELHTs on a monthly basis based on a negotiated
amount per full-time equivalency ("FTE"). Funding for the ELHTs is based on the existing
benefits funding embedded within the Grants for Student Needs ("GSN"), including
additional ministry funding in the form of a Crown contribution, and Stabilization
Adjustment.

Depending on prior arrangements and employee groups, the Board continues to provide
health, dental and life insurance benefits for retired individuals.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Board has adopted the following policies with respect to accounting for these
employee benefits:

(i) The costs of self-insured retirement and other employee future benefit plans are
actuarially determined using management's best estimate of salary escalation,
accumulated sick days at retirement, insurance and health care costs trends, disability
recovery rates, long-term inflation rates and discount rates. The cost of retirement
gratuities is actuarially determined using the employee's salary, banked sick days and
years of service as at August 31, 2012, at which time, the plan was curtailed, and
management's best estimate of discount rates. Any actuarial gains and losses arising
from changes to the discount rate are amortized over the expected average remaining
service life of the employee group.

For self-insured retirement and other employee future benefits that vest or accumulate
over the periods of service provided by employees, such as life insurance and health
care benefits for retirees, the cost is actuarially determined using the projected benefits
method prorated on service, Under this method, the benefit costs are recognized over
the expected average service life of the employee group.

For those self-insured benefit obligations that arise from specific events that occur from
time to time, such as obligations for worker's compensation and long-term disability, the
cost is recognized immediately in the period the events occur. Any actuarial gains and
losses that are related to these benefits are recognized immediately in the period they
arise.

(i) The cost of multi-employer defined pension plan benefits, such as the Ontario
Municipal Employees Retirement System ("OMERS") pension, is the employer's
contribution due to the plan during the year.

(i) The costs of insured benefits are the employer's portion of insurance premiums owed
for coverage of employees during the year.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(i} Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated amortization.
Historical cost includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction,
development or betterment of the asset. When historical cost records were not available,
other methods were used to estimate the costs and accumulated amortization.

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as
incurred.

Tangible capital assets, except land, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements 15 years
Buildings 20 years and

40 years
Portable structures 20 years
First-time equipping of schools 10 years
Furniture 10 years
Equipment 5 -15 years
Computer hardware 3-5years
Computer software 5 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Buildings - leasehold improvements Remaining term of lease

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.

Land permanently removed from service and held for resale is recorded at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost includes amounts for improvements to prepare the land for
sale or servicing. Buildings permanently removed from service cease to be amortized and
their carrying values are written down to their residual value. Tangible capital assets that
meet the criteria for financial assets are reclassified as "assets held for sale” on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these
consolidated financial statements.

10
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued):

() Government transfers:

Government transfers, which include legislative grants, are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements in the year in which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing
the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable estimates
of the amount can be made. If government transfers contain stipulations which give rise to
a liability, they are deferred and recognized in revenue when the stipulations are met.

Government transfers for capital are deferred as required by Regulation 395/11, recorded
as deferred capital contributions and recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement
of operations and accumulated surplus at the same rate and over the same periods as the
asset is amortized.

(k) Investment income:
Investment income earned is reported as revenue in the fiscal year earned.
Investment income earned on externally restricted funds, such as pupil accommodation,
education development charges and special education, when required by the funding
government or related act, forms part of the respective deferred revenue balances.

(I) Long-term debt:

Long-term debt is recorded net of related sinking fund assets balances.
(m) Budget figures:

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from
the budget approved by the Board of Trustees (the "Trustees"). The budget approved by
the Trustees is developed in accordance with the provincially mandated funding model for
school boards and is used to manage program spending within the guidelines of the
funding model.

11
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

1a Significant accounting policies (continued):
(n) Contaminated sites:

Contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being introduced that
exceeds an environmental standard.

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized, net of any expected
recoveries, when all of the following criteria are met:

(i) an environmental standard exists;

(ii) contamination exceeds the environmental standard,;

(i) the Board is directly responsible or accepts responsibility for the liability;
(iv) future economic benefits will be given up; and

(v) areasonable estimate of the liability can be made.
(o) Use of estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the basis of
accounting described in note 1 requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consoclidated financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these
current estimates, These estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become
necessary, they are reported in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated
surplus in the year in which they become known. Significant estimates include
assumptions used in estimating the collectability of accounts receivable to determine the
allowance for doubtful accounts, in estimating provisions for accrued liabilities and in
performing actuarial valuations of employee future benefits liabilities. In addition, the
Board's implementation of Public Sector Accounting Standard PS3150, Tangible Capital
Assets, requires management to make estimates of historical cost and useful lives of
tangible capital assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

12
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

2. Accounts receivable - Government of Ontario:

The Province replaced variable capital funding with a one-time debt support grant in 2009-10.
The Board received a one-time grant that recognizes capital debt as of August 31, 2010 that is
supported by the existing capital programs. The Board receives this grant in cash over the
remaining term of the existing capital debt instruments. The Board may also receive yearly
capital grants to support capital programs which would be reflected in accounts receivable.

Included in accounts receivable is an amount from the Province of $260,346,620 (2018 -
$291,237,939) as at August 31, 2019 with respect to capital grants.

The Ministry introduced a cash management strategy effective September 1, 2018. As part of
the strategy, the Ministry delays part of the grant payment to school boards where the adjusted
accumulated surplus and deferred revenue balances are in excess of certain criteria set out by
the Ministry. The balance of delayed grant payments included in the receivable balance from
the Government of Ontario at August 31, 2019 is $27,517,103.

3. Deferred revenue:

Revenue received that has been set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or
agreement is included in deferred revenue and reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Deferred revenue set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or agreement as at
August 31, 2019 is summarized below:

Deferred
revenue, Deferred
beginning revenue,
2019 of year Increase Decrease end of year
Education development
charges $ - 3 5382245 § 5,382,245 § -
Proceeds of disposition,
including interest allocation 1,528,678 6,795,364 6,795,364 1,528,678
Other:
Capital 4,652,984 10,360,678 7,880,913 7,032,749
Operating 3,841,263 108,465,928 109,551,042 2,756,149

$ 10,022,925 §$ 131,004215 $ 129709564 $ 11,317,576

13
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DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
3. Deferred revenue (continued):
Deferred
revenue, Deferred
beginning revenue,
2018 of year Increase Decrease end of year
Education development
charges $ - $ 6451190 $ 6451190 § -
Proceeds of disposition,
including interest allocation 5,200,166 - 3,671,488 1,528,678
Other:
Capital 6,153,904 10,260,336 11,761,256 4,652,984
Operating 3,816,577 105,266,453 105,241,767 3,841,263

$ 15170647 § 121,977,979 % 127125701 $ 10,022,925

4.  Deferred capital contributions:

Deferred capital contributions include grants and contributions received that are used for the
acquisition of tangible capital assets in accordance with Regulation 395/11 that have been
expended by year end. The contributions are amortized into revenue over the useful life of the
asset acquired.

2019 2018
Balance, beginning of year $ 716,743,307 $ 654,418,171
Additions to deferred capital contributions 59,910,908 97,416,866
Revenue recognized in the year (38,742,688) (35,091,730)
Balance, end of year $ 737,911,527 $ 716,743,307

14
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DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
5.  Retirement and other employee future benefits:
Retirement and other employee future benefits liabilities:
Other Total
employee employee
Retirement future future
2019 benefits benefits benefits
Accrued employee future
benefits liability $ 34,299,488 § 12,170,326 $ 46,469,815
Unamortized actuarial loss (4,857,001) - (4,857,001)
Employee future benefits
liability at August 31 $ 29,442,488 $ 12,170,326 $ 41,612,814
Other Total
employee employee
Retirement future future
2018 benefits benefits benefits
Accrued employee future
benefits liability $ 35,621,148 $ 8,560,279 $ 44,181,427
Unarmortized actuarial loss (2,238,381) - (2,238,381)
Employee future benefits
liability at August 31 $ 33,382,767 $ 8,560,279 $ 41,943,046

15
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DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
5. Retirement and other employee future benefits (continued):
Retirement and other employee future benefits expense:
Other Total
employee employee
Retirement future future
2018 benefits benefits benefits
Current year benefit cost $ = $ 6,312,247 $ 6,312,247
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 955,763 286,139 1,241,902
Amortized actuarial loss 431,568 69,101 500,669
Employee future benefits expense!” $ 1,387,331 $ 6,667,487 $ 8,054,818
Other Total
employee employee
Retirement future future
2018 henefits benefits benefits
Current year benefit cost $ - $ 853977 $ 853,977
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 972,768 220,191 1,192,959
Amortized actuarial loss 463,604 81,434 545,038
Employee future benefits expense!! $ 1,436,372 $ 1,155,602 $ 2,591,974

(MExcluding pension contributions to OMERS, a multi-employer pension plan described below.

(a) Plan changes:

In 2012, changes were made to the Board's retirement gratuity plan, sick leave plan and
retiree health, life and dental plan. As a result, employees eligible for retirement gratuity
will receive a payout upon retirement based on their accumulated vested sick days under
the plan, years of service and salary as of August 31, 2012. All accumulated non-vested
sick days are eliminated as of September 1, 2012, and were replaced with a new short-

term leave and disability plan.

16
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

5. Retirement and other employee future benefits (continued):

In 2013, further changes were made to the short-term leave and disability plan. Under the
new short-term leave and disability plan, 11 unused sick leave days may be carried forward
into the following year only, to be used to top-up benefits received under the short-term
leave and disability plan in that year. A new provision was established as at August 31,
2013, representing the expected usage of sick days that have been carried forward for
benefit top-up in the following year.

Retirement life insurance and health care benefits have been grandfathered to existing
retirees and employees who retired in 2012 - 2013. Effective September 1, 2013, any new
retiree accessing retirement life insurance and health care benefits will pay the full
premiums for such benefits and are included in a separate experience pool that is self-
funded.

(b) Retirement benefits:
(i) Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan:

Teachers and related employee groups are eligible to be members of the Ontario
Teachers' Pension Plan. Employer contributions for these employees are provided
directly by the Province. The pension costs and obligations related to this plan are a
direct responsibility of the Province. Accordingly, no cost or liabilities related to this
plan are included in the Board's consolidated financial statements.

(i) Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System:

All non-teaching employees of the Board are eligible to be members of OMERS, a
multi-employer pension plan. The plan provides defined pension benefits to employees
based on their length of service and rates of pay. The Board contributions equal the
employee contributions to the plan. During the year ended August 31, 2019, the Board
contributed $10,386,037 (2018 - $10,042,042) to the plan. As this is a multi-employer
pension plan, these contributions are the Board's pension benefit expenses. No
pension liability for this type of plan is included in the Board's consolidated financial
statements.

17
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

5.  Retirement and other employee future benefits (continued):
(iii) Retirement gratuities:

The Board provides retirement gratuities to certain groups of employees hired prior to
specified dates. The Board provides these benefits through an unfunded defined
benefit plan. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan are included in the
Board's consolidated financial statements. In 2013, the amount of gratuities payable to
eligible employees at retirement was based on their salary, accumulated sick days and
years of service at retirement. As a result of the plan change, the amount of the
gratuities payable to eligible employees at retirement is now based on their salary,
accumulated sick days and years of service up to August 31, 2012.

(iv) Retirement life insurance and health care benefits:

The Board continues to make available life insurance, dental and health care benefits
to certain employee groups after retirement until the members reach 65 years of age at
100% cost to the retiree. The Board provides these benefits through an unfunded
defined benefit plan. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan are included in
the Board's consolidated financial statements. Effective September 1, 2013,
employees retiring on or after this date will no longer qualify for Board-subsidized
premiums or contributions.

{c) Other employee future benefits:
(i) Sick leave top-up benefits:

As a result of new changes made in 2013 to the short-term sick leave and disability
plan, a maximum of 11 unused sick leave days from the current year may be carried
forward into the following year only, to be used to top-up salary for ilinesses paid
through the short-term leave and disability plan in that year. The benefit costs
expensed in the consolidated financial statements are $435,277 (2018 - $426,011).

The accrued benefit obligation for the sick leave top-up is based on an actuarial
valuation for accounting purposes as of August 31, 2019. This actuarial valuation is
based on assumptions about future events and is based on the average daily salary
and banked sick days of employees as at August 31, 2019.

18
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

5. Retirement and other employee future benefits (continued):
(i) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board ("WSIB"} obligations:

The Board is a Schedule 2 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board
Act (the "Act") and, as such, assumes responsibility for the payment of all claims to its
injured workers under the Act. The Board does not fund these obligations in advance
of payments made under the Act. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan
are included in the Board's consolidated financial statements. The plan changes made
in 2012 now require school boards to provide salary top-up to a maximum of
4-1/2 years for employees receiving payments from WSIB, where previously negotiated
collective agreements included such provision.

(if) Long-term disability:

The costs of salary compensation paid to employees on long-term disability leave are
fully insured and are not included in the defined benefit plan.

The accrued benefit obligations for employee future benefit plans as at August 31, 2019 are
based on actuarial valuations for accounting purposes as of August 31, 2019 and based on
updated average daily salary and banked sick days as at August 31, 2019. These actuarial
valuations were based on the plan changes outlined above and assumptions about future
events. The economic assumptions used in these valuations are the Board's best estimates of
expected rates:

2019 2018
Inflation 1.50% 1.50%
Wages and salary escalation 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance and health care cost escalation 3.50% -7.25% 3.75% - 7.75%
Discount on accrued benefit obligations 2.00% 2.90%
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DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
6. Netdebenture debt and capital loans:
2019 2018
Debenture #1:
6.75%, 20-year sinking fund debenture for $160,000,000,
maturing November 2019 $ 160,000,000 $ 160,000,000
Debenture #2:
5.6%, 15-year amortizing debenture for $20,000,000
held with the Bank of Montreal, maturing July 2019 = 8,365,662
Capital loan - Geod Places to Learn: ’
4.56%, 25-year amortizing debenture for $25,375,026 held
with Ontario Financing Authority, maturing November 2031 16,171,120 17,112,922
4.90%, 25-year amortizing loan for $14,996,927 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2033 10,453,896 10,973,889
5.06%, 25-year amortizing loan for $15,344,350 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2034 11,738,685 12,259,956
5.232%, 25-year amortizing loan for $34,865,412 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing April 2035 26,980,589 28,056,852
4.83%, 25-year amortizing loan for $17,404,657 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 11, 2036 13,839,968 14,363,477
Capital loan - New Pupil Places:
4,86%, 25-year amortizing loan for $16,000,000 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing June 2033 11,360,804 11,910,045
5.047%, 25-year amortizing loan for $74,957,615 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing November 2034 56,628,435 58,991,163
3.97%, 25-year amortizing loan for $1,772,255 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2036 1,425,692 1,481,224
3.564%, 25-year amortizing loan for $13,710,012 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2037 10,967,671 11,402,147
4.003%, 25-year amortizing loan for $12,786,341 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2039 11,112,436 11,474,267
2.993%, 25-year amortizing loan for $35,634,064 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2040 31,509,334 32,686,913
3.242%, 25-year amortizing loan for $25,580,732 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2041 23,460,760 24,190,261
3.594%, 25-year amortizing loan for $8,867,856 held with
Ontario Financing Authority, maturing March 2042 8,407,160 8,641,610
394,066,550 411,810,388
Less sinking fund assets 160,000,000 151,952,872

$ 234,066,550 $ 259,857,516
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

6. Net debenture debt and capital loans (continued):

Principal and interest payments relating to net debenture debt and capital loans of
$234,066,550 (2018 - $259,857,516) outstanding as at August 31, 2018 and 2018 are due as

follows:
Principal and
sinking fund
2019 contributions Interast Total
2019 - 2020 169,801,332 § 15,524,996 $ 185,326,328
2020 - 2021 10,244,199 9,682,130 19,926,329
2021 - 2022 10,707,717 9,218,613 19,926,330
2022 - 2023 11,192,875 8,733,457 19,926,332
2023 - 2024 11,700,700 8,225,630 19,926,330
Thereafter 180,419,727 52,259,408 232,679,135
394,066,550 103,644,234 497,710,784
Less sinking fund assets 160,000,000 - 160,000,000
234,066,550 § 103,644,234 337,710,784
Principal and
sinking fund
2018 contributions Interest Total
2018 - 2019 17,743,838 $ 21,731,721 39,475,559
2019 - 2020 169,801,332 15,524,996 185,326,328
2020 - 2021 10,244,199 9,682,130 19,926,329
2021 -2022 10,707,717 9,218,613 19,926,330
2022 - 2023 11,192,875 8,733,457 19,926,332
Thereafter 192,120,427 60,485,038 252,605,465
411,810,388 125,375,955 537,186,343
Less sinking fund assets 151,952,872 - 151,952,872

$ 259,857,516  § 125,375,955 § 385,233,471

Retirement of sinking funds in the year that they mature are not included as payments in the
above tables.
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Appendix A

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

6. Net dehenture debt and capital loans (continued):

Included in net debenture debt are outstanding debentures of $160,000,000 (2018 -
$160,000,000) secured by sinking fund assets with a carrying value of $160,000,000 (2018 -
$151,952,872) (approximate market value of $160,000,000 (2018 - $157,157,060)). Sinking
fund assets comprise government and government-guaranteed bonds.

7.  Debt charges and interest on capital loans and leases:

2019 2018

Debenture and capital loan principal payments,
including contributions to sinking funds $ 17,743,838 $ 11,222,463
Interest on debentures and capital loan 21,717,990 22,699,089

$ 39,461,828 $ 33,921,552

Included in debt repayment and sinking fund contributions on the consolidated statement of
cash flows in total of $25,790,966 (2018 - $19,936,675) are principal payments on long-term
debt of $17,743,838 (2018 - $11,222,463) and sinking fund interest revenue of $8,047,128
(2018 - $8,714,212).

8.  Temporary borrowing:

The Board has a line of credit available to the maximum of $65,000,000 to address operating
requirements and/or to bridge capital expenditures.

Interest on the bankers' acceptance facility is the bankers' acceptance rate plus 0.75%. All
loans are unsecured, due on demand and are in the form of bankers' acceptance notes.

As at August 31, 2019, the amount drawn under the bankers' acceptance facility was
$26,300,000 (2018 - nil) at a rate of 2.70% (2018 - nil).
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

9. Expenses by object:

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the consolidated statement of
operations and accumulated surplus by object:

Budget Actual Actual
2019 2019 2018
(note 15)

Salary and wages $ 590,574,871 $ 598,726,612 $ 578,174,674
Employee benefits 84,738,175 95,963,617 87,644,299
Staff development 963,480 2,190,243 1,100,003
Supplies and services 52,980,113 51,664,446 50,433,968
Interest 21,731,723 22,275,088 22,580,808
Rental expenditures 634,530 306,571 431,720
Fees and contract services 29,6544 612 32,226,547 31,443,574
Other 6,485,000 10,826,352 15,818,412
School funded activities 18,434,437 18,384,873 18,328,291

Amortization, write-down and loss

on disposal of tangible capital

assets/assets held for sale 42,404 694 45,508,973 41,531,652

$ 848,491,635 § 878,073,322 $ 847,487,401
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Appendix A
DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
10. Tangible capital assets:
Balance at Disposals Balance at
August 31, P and August 31,
Cost 2018 Additions adjustments 2019
Land $ 135499781 $ 2189311 & 2555 $ 137,691,647
Land improvements 8,894,216 2,061,990 - 10,956,206
Buildings - 40 years 1,079,141,467 39,912,098 34,929,820 1,153,983,385
Buildings - 20 years 744,956 - 987,158 1,732,114
Buildings - leasehold
improvements - 15,651 - 15,651
Portable structures 19,950,815 4,275,331 - 24,226,146
First-time equipping of schools 13,639,268 1,701,832 (247,520) 15,093,580
Furniture 425,197 70,432 (58,159) 437,470
Equipment 4,204,869 1,230,665 (268,526) 5,257,008
Computer hardware 42,914,629 8,121,652 (5,560,701} 45,475,580
Computer software 2,674,109 41,502 (1,284,608) 1,431,003
Vehicles 1,640,645 212,099 (266,137) 1,686,607
Assets under construction 37,811,663 11,621,107 (35,919,533) 13,613,237
Tofal $ 1,347,631615 $ 71,453670 $ (7.685651) § 1.411,399,634
Balance at Disposals Balance at
Accumulated August 31, and August 31,
amortization 2018  Amortization adjustments 2019
Land improvements $ 2,341,113 672266 $ - % 3,013,379
Buildings - 40 years 365,251,385 33,489,855 - 398,741,240
Buildings - 20 years 93,120 61,927 - 155,047
Buildings - leasehold
improvement - 3,913 - 3,913
Portable structures 4,993,952 1,124,265 - 6,118,217
First-time equipping of schools 7,340,632 1,289,859 (247,520) 8,382,971
Furniture 163,029 39,341 (58,159) 144,211
Equipment 1,895,128 449,335 (268,526) 2,075,937
Computer hardware 19,522,717 7,914,348 (5,560,701) 21,876,362
Computer software 1,987,850 . 247,355 (1,284,608) 950,597
Vehicles 936,292 216,511 (266,137) 886,666
Total $ 404525218 $ 45508973 § (7.685651) § 442,348,540
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Appendix A
DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
10. Tangible capital assets (continued):
Balance at Disposals Balance at
August 31, and August 31,
Cost 2017 Additions adjustments 2018
Land $ 116,004453 $ 19,323,748 % 81,580 $ 135,499,781
Land improvements 6,747,547 2,146,669 - 8,894,216
Buildings - 40 years 1,033,747,523 43,773,547 1,620,397 1,079,141,467
Buildings - 20 years 744,956 - - 744,956
Portable structures 19,557,436 3,659,179 (3,265,800) 19,950,815
First-time equipping of schools 12,397,230 1,559,057 (317,019) 13,639,268
Furniture 428,620 48,016 (51,439) 425,197
Equipment 3,940,368 620,391 (265,890) 4,294,869
Computer hardware 29,776,806 15,429,240 (2,291,417) 42,914,629
Computer software 2,626,969 326,219 (279,079) 2,674,109
Vehicles 1,213,372 427,273 - 1,640,645
Assets under construction 5,795,221 34,112,520 (2,096,078) 37,811,663

Total

$ 1,233,070.501

$ 121,425,859

S (6,864,745)

$ 1,347,631,615

Balance at Disposals Balance at
Accumulated August 31, and August 31,
amortization 2017 Amortization adjustments 2018
Land improvements $ 1,810,596 3 530,517 - % 2,341,113
Buildings - 40 years 334,320,528 31,244,538 (313,681) 365,251,385
Buildings - 20 years 55,872 37,248 - 93,120
Portable structures 7,333,850 925,902 (3,265,800} 4,993,952
First-time equipping of schools 6,384,052 1,273,599 (317,019) 7,340,632
Furniture 177,257 37.211 (51,439) 163,029
Equipment 1,776,098 384,920 (265,890) 1,895,128
Computer hardware 15,384,555 6,429,579 (2,291,417) 19,622,717
Computer software 1,893,190 373,739 (279,079) 1,987,850
Vehicles 722,313 213,979 - 936,292
Total $ 369,858,311 § 41,451,232 § (6,784,325) $ 404,525,218
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

Appendix A

10.

Tangible capital assets (continued):

Net book value

2019

2018

Land

Land improvements

Buildings - 40 years

Buildings - 20 years

Buildings - leasehald improvement
Portable structures

First-time equipping of schools
Furniture

Equipment

Computer hardware

Computer software

Vehicles

Assets under construction

$ 137,691,647
7,942,827
755,242,145
1,577,067
11,738
18,107,929
6,710,609
293,259
3,181,071
23,599,218
480,406
699,941
13,513,237

$ 135,499,781
6,553,103
713,890,082
651,836

14,956,863
6,298,636
262,168
2,399,741
23,391,912
686,259
704,353
37,811,663

Total

$ 969,051,094

$ 943,106,397

€}

(c)

Assets under construction:

Assets under construction having a value of $13,513,237 (2018 - $37,811,663) have not
been amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put into

service.

Wirite-down and disposal of tangible capital assets:

The write-down of tangible capital assets during the year was nil (2018 - nil). The gain on
disposal of tangible capital assets during the year, resulting from the disposal of land, was
nil (2018 - nil). The loss on disposal of tangible capital assets during the year, resulting

from the disposal of buildings, was nil (2018 - $80,420).

Asset inventories for resale (assets permanently removed from service):

The Board has not identified any land or building properties that qualify as assets

permanently removed from service.
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Appendix A
DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
11.  Accumulated surplus:
Accumulated surplus consists of the following:
2019 2018
Working funds $ 17936996 S 15,178,288
Amounts restricted for future use of Board:
Retirement benefits 29,400,000 33,400,000
Other employee future benefits, including WSIB 11,804,150 8,600,000
School renewal - 9,423,842
School Block Budget 2,035,025 3,077,073
Local priorities 507,267 1,536,894
Innovation priorities - 1,970,160
Transportation 798,478 798,478
Continuing education 250,000 250,000
Outdoor education 600,551 600,551
Debenture redemption 454,769 909,538
Capital purposes 110,924 4,932,439
Special education 580,415 580,415
Committed capital projects 19,887,702 14,648,947
66,429,281 80,728,337
Amounts to be recovered:
Employee future benefits (21,657,874} (27,404,246)
Interest accrual (6,080,484) (6,228,952)
Committed sinking fund interest earned 68,174,408 65,899,358
40,436,050 32,266,160
Other:
School-generated funds 8,409,805 8,710,301
Revenue recognized for land 127,093,381 122,081,388
135,503,186 130,801,689

Total surplus

$ 260,305,513

$ 258,974,474
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Appendix A

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

12. Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange ("OSBIE"):

The Board is a member of OSBIE, a reciprocal insurance company licensed under the
Insurance Act. OSBIE insures general public liability, property damage and certain other risks.
Liability insurance is available to a maximum of $27,000,000 per occurrence.

The ultimate premiums over a five-year period are based on the reciprocals and the Board's
actual claims experience. Periodically, the Board may receive a refund or be asked to pay an
additional premium based on its pro rata share of claims experience. The current five-year
term expires December 2021.

13. Mississaugas of Scugog Island First Nation:

The Mississaugas of Scugog Island First Nation paid tuition fees of approximately $153,825
(2018 - $195,577) to the Board in 2018 - 2019.

14. Contractual obligations:

The Board had in previous years entered into contracts for several major projects under the
Board's School Improvement and Accommodation Plan. These projects relate to the
construction and upgrading of several schools. As at August 31, 2019, the Board has contracts
outstanding for capital work valued at approximately $8,652,000 (2018 - $23,354,000).

15. Budget data:

The budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based upon the 2019
budgets approved by the Board on June 18, 2018. Where amounts were not budgeted for, the
actual amounts for 2018 were used in order to adjust the budget numbers to reflect the same
basis of accounting as that used to report the actual results.
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Appendix A

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

DRAFT Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

16. Durham Student Transportation Services:

On December 19, 2005, the Board entered into a consortium agreement with Durham Catholic
District School Board in order to provide common administration of student transportation in the
Durham Region. This agreement was executed in an effort to increase delivery efficiency and
cost-effectiveness of student transportation for each of the school boards. Under the
agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities of the Durham
transportation consortium are shared. No party is in a position to exercise unilateral control.

The Board's consolidated financial statements reflect proportionate consolidation, whereby they
include the assets that it controls, the liabilities that it has incurred, and its pro rata share of
revenues and expenses.

47. Trust funds:

The trust fund balances administered by the Board amount to $1,817,906 (2018 - $1,809,913)
and have not been included in the consolidated statement of financial position nor have their
operations been included in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus.
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Appendix A
DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Statement of Financial Position
Year ended August 31, 2019
The following comments and explanations are submitted for the information of the Board:
2019 2018

Cash & Investments
At August 31, 2019, the Board, in line with its investment policy,
had cash and short term investments totaling 38,151,537 60,256,763
Accounts Receivable
Property Taxes from Municipalities 24,305,849 24,238,897
Other School Boards for Shared Services 246,561 365,505
Govt. of Ont. - P.S.T., Teachers on Loan & 2018-2019 Grants 15,605,831 7,671,608
Govt. of Canada - G.S.T. & D.N.D. 1,742,309 1,435,603
Govt. of Ont. - Approved Capital 260,346,620 291,237,929
Govt. of Ont. - Delayed Grant Payment 27,517,103 -
First Nations 46,304 64,957
Others 1,549,291 1,543,909

331,359,868 326,558,408
Accounts Payable
Govt. of Ontario - EHT & PST 792,984 783,045
Govt. of Canada re August Payroll Deductions & Other 3,221,835 3,027,153
Payroll Liabilities 6,663,456 5,874,541
Accrued Liabilities re Debenture Debt Interest 6,080,483 6,228,950
Trade Payables 26,046,827 38,368,035
School Boards for Shared Services 250,943 40,812
Municipalities 1,949 -

43,058,477 54,322,536

Deferred Revenue - Obligatory Reserve Funds and Other
A summary is included in Note 3 to these financial statements 11,317,576 10,022,925

30




111

Appendix A
Statement of Financial Position (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019
2019 2018
Retirement and Other Employee Future Benefits
Accrued Employee Future Benefit Liabilities of the following:
Retirement:
Retirement Gratuities 29,261,619 33,254,140
Retirement Health, Dental & Life Insurance 180,869 128,627
29,442,488 33,382,767
Other:
Workplace Safety Insurance Benefits 11,804,150 8,215,702
Sick Leave 366,176 344,577
12,170,326 8,560,279
41,612,814 41,943,046

Net Debenture Debt
A summary is included in Note 6 to these financial statements

Deferred Capital Contributions
A summary is included in Note 4 to these financial statements

Tangible Capital Assets
A summary is included in Note 9 to these financial statements

A summary of the additions during 2018-2019 is included in
Schedule 2 to these financial statements

Non Financial Asset

Prepaid Insurance

Inventory of Supplies

PrePayment re: Elementary Teachers, Elementary Principals,
Vice-Principals Salaries - August 30, 2019

Prepaid Premiums re: Employee Life Health Trust (ELHT)

31

234,066,550

259,857,516

737,911,527 716,743,307
969,051,094 943,106,397
71,457,677 121,425,853
661,377 588,233
64,418 134,806
11,351,312 11,219,197
3,932,851 5
16,009,958 11,942,236
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Statement of Financial Position (continued)
Year ended August 31, 2019

2019 2018
Accumulated Surplus
A summary is included in Note 10 to these financial statements S 260,305,513 $ 258,974,474
The internally appropriated funds that form part of the accumulated
surplus as described in Schedule 1 to these financial statements S 84,366,263 $ 95,906,621

The Board has limited flexibility with these funds as they are to be used
for the purposes for which they were created.
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Appendix A

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Accumulated Surplus — Internally Restricted Funds

Year ended August 31, 2019

Purpose of Each Restricted Fund:

According to the Education Act most of the specific funds described below can only be used for the
purposes for which they were created. If it is determined that the need for a specific fund is no longer
required due to legislative changes or discontinuance in benefits programs, etc. then these funds are
transferred to the Working Reserve. The Board has limited discretionary authority to utilize restricted
funds for other than those for which they were created.

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS — INTERNALLY RESTRICTED

School Renewal Fund:

This fund must be used for major renovations or repairs to schools under Ministry Guidelines and the
Education Act. The fund has been collapsed and included in the Working Funds balance.

Committed Capital Projects (Tangible Capital Asset (TCA) Unsupported Amortization):

This fund is used to cover the amortization expense of assets where there have not been any capital
contributions from the Province and therefore no offsetting Deferred Capital Contributions (DCC) have
been set up.

Debenture Redemption Fund:

This fund is to be used for paying down outstanding debenture debt and would be used for making sinking
fund payments. It also assists to sustain the Board's credit rating.

Capital Purposes Fund:

This fund can only be used for acquiring new sites, building new schools or major additions or renovations,
or other capital purposes.

Special Education Fund

This reserve can only be used for special education requirements.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Accumulated Surplus — Internally Restricted Funds (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

Working Funds:
This fund is to provide funds for unexpected contingencies and cash flow requirements.

Retirement Benefits Fund:

This fund is used when the actual number of retirements exceeds what is projected for a normal year of
retirements. This fund is then drawn on to supplement the budgeted amount of retirement gratuities.

Local Priorities Fund:

This fund is the balance of the funds to be spent in 2018-2019 which was provided from the Province to
support the implementation of the 2017-2019 Labour Agreements.

Other Employee Future Benefits including WSIB Fund:

The Board is self-insured for Workplace Safety Insurance and has a liability set up that equals the estimate
provided by the Board’s Actuary. This fund is used to cover claims against the Board.

School Block Budget Fund:

This fund represents the net surplus/deficit of all schools at year end and is allocated back to each in the
following year.

Transportation Fund:

This fund was created from special funding from the Ministry to assist with increased operating costs for
student transportation, as a consequence of fuel price increases.

Continuing Education Fund:

This fund was created from additional revenue over expenses in 2009-2010 because of various
Government of Canada contracts.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Accumulated Surplus — Internally Restricted Funds (continued)

Year ended August 31, 2019

Outdoor Education Fund:

This fund is from fees at the after-hours programs operating at the various centres and is intended to
cover future maintenance and equipment purchases.

Innovation Priorities Fund:

This fund is the balance of funds for innovation projects approved in 2017-2018 carried forward into 2018-
2019. These funds were fully expended in 2018-2019.

DEFERRED REVENUE

Education Development Charges:

This fund can only be used for purchasing new sites and preparing the site for construction, as required
by the Education Act. It is considered deferred revenue in the Financial Statements.

Proceeds of Dispositions:

This fund is the proceeds from sale of sites and schools and can only be used for repair or replacement of
components within a school as set in the Ministry School Condition Improvement Policy or with a Ministry
exemption the funds can also be used for the following: acquiring new sites, building new schools, major
additions, and portables.
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DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD Schedule 2
Capital Expenditures
Year ended August 31, 2019
Sites
Site - Elsie MacGill PS 72,418
Site - Viola Desmond PS 9,486
Site - Whitby Shores - 2nd Phase 14,481
Site - Unnamed Scugog Shores PS 4,221
Site - Unnamed North Ajax PS (Williamson Drive West/Bellinger Drive) 2,196
Site - Unnamed North Whitby PS (Samandria Avenue/Lazio Street) 48,598
Site - Unnamed Beaverton/Thorah PS Rebuild 10,179
Site - Quaker Village PS - 2nd Phase 1,982,948 S 2,144,527
Other Assets
Claremont PS 325,675
Northern Dancer PS 1,050,867
Viola Desmond PS 531,476
RS MclLaughlin CVI 345,844
Eastdale CVI 2,461,513
Elsie MacGill PS 9,947,519
Unnamed Beaverton/Thorah PS Rebuild 524,876
Unnamed North Ajax PS (Williamson Drive West/Bellinger Drive) 406,736
Unnamed North Whitby PS (Samadria Avenue/Lazio Street) 509,564
Portables 4,530,696
Other Equipment from Revenue 8,213,720
Other Improvements from Revenue 1,262,848
School Condition Improvement Projects 18,854,720
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Projects 723,372
Facility (Maintenance) Renewal Projects 7,261,631
Proceeds of Disposition Renewal Projects 9,573,179
Child Care Projects 1,896,441
Community Hub Projects 892,473 69,313,150
Total Expenditures 71,457,677

37



118

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Trust Funds

Year ended August 31, 2019

Appendix A

PRINCIPAL INCOME DISBURSEMENT  UNDISTRIBUTED

2019 2019 2019 INCOME
TOTAL SAVINGS TRUST S 588,817.45 $ 29,488.46 S 17,165.28 $ 129,354.35
TOTAL CHARITABLE TRUST $ 890,511.00 $ 258,032.54 $ 238,449.28 S 209,215.87
TOTAL SAVINGS & CHARITABLE TRUST $ 1,479,328.45 $ 287,521.00 $ 255,614.56 S 338,570.22

38



119

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Trust Funds

Year ended August 31, 2019

Appendix A

SAVINGS PRINCIPAL INCOME DISBURSEMENT  UNDISTRIBUTED
2019 2019 2019 INCOME

LOVELL STUDENT LOANS S 105,000.00 S 4,64253 $ : S 105,384.60

AJAX H.S. SCHOLARSHIP 7,050.00 1,855.10 2,000.00 169.34
ANDERSON FASHION 640.00 174.08 200.00 22.65
ANDERSON GRADUATES 3,300.00 347.60 350.00 92.93
FLORENCE ARMSTRONG 850.00 68.70 0.00 127.84
BAKER MEMORIAL PARK 5,850.00 128.70 100.00 184.16
OSCAR BLACK 5.00 95.11 0.00 105.10
FRED BROWNE 450.00 155.80 100.00 19.93
CAMPBELL ESTATE 64,500.00 1,419.00 0.00 3,535.83
CANNINGTON CENTENNIAL 445.00 38.79 50.00 11.99
CLARA CARSON 1,585.00 74.87 100.00 38.38
LILY COWAN 2,019.45 499.98 300.00 144.43
MARTIN DAVIES 4,000.00 88.00 75.00 169.79
DIBBON MEMORIAL 1,000.00 22.00 100.00 253.20
EASTDALE 25TH 5,350.00 167.70 200.00 130.44
EASTDALE STUDENT COUNCIL 625.00 88.75 100.00 19.24
EDMONDSON FUND 925.00 195.35 100.00 120.48
FLORENCE FAREWELL 280.00 56.16 50.00 11.92
HIGGS MEMORIAL 850.00 18.70 50.00 37.31
F.E. HISLOP (SEC.) 420.00 39.24 0.00 61.06
F.E. HISLOP (ELEM.) 1,000.00 22.00 0.00 142.99
MICHAEL JACULA 0.00 75.00 75.00 6.72
M.F. KIRKLAND 1,520.00 213.44 0.00 240.55
DAVE KORNBLUM 1,385.00 65.47 50.00 33.71
MARY MACCALLUM 27,725.00 3,909.85 3,800.00 624.82
HAYDEN MACDONALD 23,000.00 506.00 0.00 1,723.03
S.J. MARCHUT 1,425.00 206.35 200.00 46.78
BRUCE MATHER 0.00 715.40 720.00 18.36
MAYCOCK MEM. (SEC.) 4,525.00 249.55 100.00 210.55
MAYCOCK MEM. (ELEM.) 5,000.00 110.00 0.00 260.64
SARAH MCADIE 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.49
LEILA MCEWEN 100.00 2.20 50.00 805.17
DOUG MCLELLAN 1,400.00 55.80 0.00 81.41
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SAVINGS PRINCIPAL INCOME DISBURSEMENT  UNDISTRIBUTED
2019 2019 2019 INCOME

N.C. MILLMAN (GEOG.) 1,170.00 380.74 300.00 121.57
N.C. MILLMAN (CITIZEN) 9,835.00 506.37 300.00 316.76
LOUIS MUNROE 4,500.00 99.00 100.00 125.64
H.E. MURPHY AWARD 750.00 116.50 100.00 37.39
H.E. MURPHY MEMORIAL 350.00 107.70 100.00 25.47
0.C.V.I. WAR MEMORIAL 11,365.00 390.03 0.00 507.57
O'NEILL ART FUND 540.00 251.88 0.00 262.06
PASCOE AWARD 750.00 16.50 0.00 57.78
IRENE MAY PAWSON 745.00 96.39 0.00 121.14
JAMES QUANTRILL 75.00 26.65 300.00 4.09
GEORGE QUICK 500.00 11.00 50.00 15.20
FRANCIS RICHARDSON 0.00 180.00 191.68 0.00
LEONARD RICHER 2,600.00 57.20 0.00 1,136.58
S.J.W. RICKARD 205.00 84.51 75.00 12.36
ETHEL DUNFIELD ROGERS 71,000.00 1,562.00 500.00 2,719.38
MYRNA RUBENSTEIN 1,150.00 50.30 50.00 25.62
STEPHEN SAYWELL 1,250.00 177.50 200.00 36.63
SCUGOG |.0.D.E. 1,000.00 22.00 0.00 943.55
SHARROCK MEMORIAL 2,700.00 155.40 150.00 62.95
SLYFIELD MEMORIAL 600.00 13.20 0.00 39.20
SQUAIR & TAMBLYN 50.00 51.10 0.00 60.08
J.C. SQUIRES 200.00 4.40 0.00 55.96
LEWIS STEVENSON 745.00 96.39 0.00 119.33
J. ALBERT SYKES 450.00 184.90 0.00 215.04
|. JOSEPHINE SYKES 650.00 89.30 0.00 120.35
C & TTHOMAS 8,235.00 496.17 300.00 286.20
TRICK MEMORIAL 210.00 94.62 0.00 113.28
LOU VALIQUET 700.00 15.40 50.00 174.75
GWENDOLYN M. WALKER 27,200.00 598.40 0.00 1,668.04
JEAN WALKER 300.00 56.60 50.00 10.10
J. DOUGLAS WAUGH 725.00 115.95 0.00 124.82
K. WELS AWARD 1,315.00 88.93 100.00 37.37
K. WELS TROPHY 0.00 0.00 61.60 0.00
GAIL WHITE 475.00 110.45 0.00 120.76
YIELDING FUND 870.00 199.14 100.00 123.27
MILDRED PASCOE AWARD 470.00 15.34 20.00 13.94
EUNICE BUCK ART AWARD 50,004.00 1,100.09 0.00 2,837.83
SOUTHEAST COLLECTOR - DUNBARTON 54,442 .00 3,241.72 3,000.00 868.99
SOUTHEAST COLLECTOR - PINERIDGE 58,467.00 2,308.27 2,000.00 990.46
TOTAL SAVINGS S 588,817.45 29,488.46 $ 17,165.28 $ 129,354.35
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PRINCIPAL INCOME DISBURSEMENT  UNDISTRIBUTED
CHARITABLE TRUST 2019 2019 2019 INCOME
ARTHUR ARCHIBALD MEMORIAL S 5,090.00 S 52198 S 500.00 §$ 117.73
W.A. ANDREW 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
LEWIS BEATON 34,000.00 1,354.70 0.00 28,518.76
MICHELLE BERRY MEMORIAL 0.00 8,057.99 8,247.91 0.00
BROCK 50TH ANNIVERSARY 6,840.00 430.48 350.00 154.12
PAUL BURCH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EVELYN BURDEN MUSIC AWARDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,629.97
DOUGLAS CHENHALL 4,700.00 103.40 100.00 200.88
STEPHEN COCHRANE 1,600.00 435.20 0.00 1,042.15
CHRISTINE WESTCOTT MEMORIAL 5,300.00 10.60 0.00 10.60
DOREEN COOKE MEMORIAL 1,120.00 504.64 1,000.00 32.78
BETTY DAWSON MEMORIAL 46,700.00 1,231.85 450.00 9,935.97
WENDY DIXON 300.00 56.60 50.00 14.14
JOHN DRYDEN AWARD 920.00 50.24 50.00 23.56
JOHN DRYDEN MATH AWARD 475.00 10.45 25.00 93.80
ANNE EADIE (O'NEILL) 4,880.00 127.36 0.00 209.94
ANNE EADIE (PORT PERRY) 4,200.00 242.40 200.00 95.77
DR. C. ELLIOTT 645.00 94.19 100.00 17.69
ROBERT FARELL 610.00 103.42 100.00 21.13
JOAN KATIE FORSYTHE 2,300.00 50.60 0.00 176.82
MARY W. FOWLER BURSARY 98,090.00 2,417.98 1,250.00 2,163.49
VERA & CLIFFORD GODWIN 1,640.00 246.08 300.00 39.29
DANIELLE HARMON 325.00 7.15 25.00 108.93
HENDERSON SCHOLARSHIP 875.00 69.25 50.00 28.38
ISABELLA HOME MEMORIAL 20,000.00 440.00 200.00 1,327.51
J.W. HUTCHINSON 915.00 80.13 100.00 26.18
H.L. JAMIESON 485.00 100.67 100.00 20.45
MICHAEL JARDIN 1,640.00 1,076.08 1,600.00 47.94
D. JARRELL (BOBBY ORR) 1,834.00 56.35 50.00 40.86
D. JARRELL (MARY ST.) 2,655.00 78.41 50.00 60.39
HAROLD T. MAHEU 890.00 179.58 200.00 29.17
LYN MARLOW SCHOLARSHIP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
RYAN MCELWAIN MEMORIAL 500.00 11.00 0.00 36.63
HAZEL JEAN MCGILL 11,000.00 242.00 150.00 337.64
MCLAUGHLIN FOUNDATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.64
ROY MCQUAID LAW AWARD 2,730.00 520.06 0.00 563.31
I.W. NANCEKIEVILL 4,075.00 89.65 250.00 136.07
CATHY O'FLYNN MEMORIAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
JOHN POLTZ SR. 1,850.00 90.70 100.00 47.97
JOHN POLTZ JR. 720.00 95.84 100.00 17.23
RENAISSANCE AWARD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10
FRED RHODES MEMORIAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
J. CLARKE RICHARDSON 1,070.00 1,013.54 1,000.00 29.57

41



122

DURHAM DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Trust Funds

Year ended August 31, 2019

Appendix A

PRINCIPAL INCOME DISBURSEMENT  UNDISTRIBUTED
CHARITABLE TRUST 2019 2019 2019 INCOME

G.L. ROBERTS 43,650.00 1,985.30 1,500.00 962.05
KATHLEEN ROWE MUSIC 0.00 0.00 20.00 1,105.24
R.A. SENNETT 100.00 102.20 100.00 16.83
DBEN SCHOLARSHIP 1,280.00 71.56 0.00 71.56
). ROSS STEVENSON 30,663.00 1,354.59 1,000.00 684.01
BRIAN SUTHERLAND 2,050.00 45.10 50.00 464.01
JOHN THOMPSON 4,100.00 90.20 100.00 130.79
CHERYL WESTCOTT 724.00 41.93 50.00 16.70
J. WILSON COCHRANE WILSON 2,265.00 49.83 100.00 90.67
E.H. WINTER 1,240.00 87.28 100.00 35.16
WILLIAM MACDONALD BAYES 50,000.00 1,100.00 500.00 1,675.95
BRIAN CLARK 5,000.00 110.00 0.00 1,123.26
DONNA STRAUGHAN 325.00 160.45 50.00 44.75
LESLIE BERGSTROM 2,630.00 377.86 400.00 58.70
JCR COMPUTER SCIENCE AWARD 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SHIRLEY VASEY MUSIC AWARD 860.00 33.92 25.00 23.23
JEAN RUTHERFORD SCHOLARSHIP 15,000.00 524.73 1,000.00 8,243.28
STAN KOLESNIK MEMORIAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
LILLIAN EVELYN BLOOM AWARDS 290,250.00 6,662.42 9,000.00 10,061.23
NANCY JONES MEMORIAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CODY DENOBLE MEMORIAL 69,000.00 3,184.12 1,500.00 76,282.34
ALEXANDER GRAHAM CHRISTIE 100,000.00 2,200.00 1,500.00 3,528.40
ONTARIO POWER GENERATION 0.00 10,000.00 11,000.00 7,500.00
LEWIS WILLIAMS SCHOLARSHIP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
LEWIS WILLIAMS SCHOLARSHIP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
JOHN BEATTY BURSARY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER 0.00 0.11 0.00 1,797.81
GAIL MARIE THOMSON MUSIC FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
RELIABLE LIFE INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
RACING AGAINST DRUGS - (BUS.) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ART CAMP (D.I.A.C.) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03
SCHOOL DONATIONS 0.00 192,606.37 193,756.37 30,012.31
SALEP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CODY DENOBLE MEMORIAL 0.00 17,044.00 0.00 17,044.00
TOTAL CHARITABLE TRUST $ 890,511.00 $ 25803254 $  238449.28 $  209,215.87
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STATUS REPORT AND
ANALYSIS OF SINKING FUND AND INTEREST PAYMENT COSTS
FOR PUPIL ACCOMMODATION AND SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURES
ISSUED NOVEMBER 19, 1999 - MATURES NOVEMBER 19, 2019
BY LAW 14 -1999
160,000,000 Debenture
2019 Maturity
Actual Value if
Sinking Annual 5.00% Interest Interest Total Total
Fund Due Rate of for balance of Payment Payment All Interest Al
Year Investment Date Return term May 19 XX Nov. 19 XX Payments Payments

1999/2000 7,953,900 October 1, 2019 6.81% 30,000,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $13,353,900
2000/2001 5,112,347 November 22,2019 6.80% 18,350,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $15,912,347
200012001 1,514,000 January 15, 2019 6.83% 5,000,000 $1,514,000
2000/2001 2,946,825 July 15, 2019 6.81% 10,000,000 $2,946,825
2000/2001 3,262,430 July 16, 2019 6.81% 11,071,000 $3,262,430
2001/2002 3,240,489 January 16, 2019 6.80% 2,887,500 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $14,040,489
2001/2002 February 15, 2019 6.80% 2,490,000
2001/2002 July 15,2019 6.80% 2,800,000
2001/2002 August 15, 2019 6.80% 2,207,255
2002/2003 1,776,261 December 1, 2018 6.25% 1,631,750 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $12,576,261
2002/2003 June 1, 2019 6.25% 1,592,750
2002/2003 December 1, 2019 6.25% 1,718,750
2002/2003 1,475,376 June 2, 2019 6.40% 4,200,000 $1,475,376
2002/2003 2,990,639 Feb 23, 2018 6.20% 1,049,000 $2,990,639
2002/2003 Mar 5, 2018 6.20% 1,049,000
2002/2003 Aug 23, 2018 6.20% 1,602,000
2002/2003 Sept. 5, 2018 6.20% 1,116,410
2002/2003 February 23, 2019 6.20% 1,049,000
2002/2003 September 5, 2019 6.20% 1,868,700
2003/2004 4,986,240 June 2, 2019 5.39% 11,200,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $15,786,240
2004/2005 4,932,980 July 13, 2019 4.60% 5,000,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $15,732,980
2004/2005 Aug 6, 2019 4.60% 2,300,000
2004/2005 Oct. 15, 2019 4.60% 2,000,000
2005/2006 1,850,112 February 15, 2019 4.70% 3,300,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $12,650,112
2005/2006 1,683,875 April 1, 2019 4.70% 2,842,000 $1,583,875
2005/2006 1,465,695 October 15, 2019 4.71% 2,700,000 $1,465,695
2006/2007 4,999,401 October 15, 2019 5.10% 9,300,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $15,799,401
2007/2008 4,899,999 January 13, 2019 4.61% 7,988,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $15,699,999
2008/2009 1,729,585 June 2 2019 4.65% 2,750,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $12,529,585
2008/2009 3,163,800 April 15 2019 4.65% 5,000,000 $3,163,800
2009/2010 2,644,528  February 18, 2019 4.56% 3,940,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $13,444,528
2010/2011 fully funded November 2019 5.00% 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2011/2012 0 November 2019 5.00% 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2012/2013 0 November 2018 5.00% 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2013/2014 0 November 2019 5.00% 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2014/2015 0 November 2019 5.00% 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2015/2016 0 November 2019 NIA 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2016/2017 0 November 2019 NIA 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2017/2018 0 November 2019 N/A 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2018/2019 0 November 2019 N/A 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $10,800,000 $10,800,000
2019/2020 0 November 2019 N/A 0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000 $5,400,000

$62,528,482 $160,003,115 $108,000,000 $108,000,000 $216,000,000 $278,528,482
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AuUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

DRAFT MINUTES

A meeting of the Audit Committee was held Monday November 7, 2019 PUBLIC in Meeting Room 1019 at
the Education Centre, 400 Taunton Road East, Whitby, Ontario.

1. Call to Order
Chair Barnes called the meeting to order at approximately 8:07 p.m.
Committee Members Trustee Patrice Barnes, Chair of the Audit Committee

Present: Trustee Darlene Forbes
External Member Matthew Tapscott

Committee Members Trustee Paul Crawford
Absence/Regrets: External Member Karla Mansfield
Staff Present: Lisa Millar, Director of Education

Jennifer Machin, Manager of Finance
Trevor Sealy, Manager of Accounting and Financial Services

Guests Present: Shelyane Li, Senior Manager, KPMG LLP
Joane Mui, Partner, KPMG LLP

Vivian Job, Senior Regional Internal Auditor

Recording Secretary: Kristin Talbot

2. Land Acknowledgement

Chair Barnes advised that the Durham District School Board acknowledges that many Indigenous
Nations have longstanding relationships, both historic and modern, with the territories upon which
our school board and schools are located. Today, this area is home to many Indigenous peoples
from across Turtle Island (North America).-We acknowledge that the Durham Region forms a part
of the traditional and treaty territory of the Mississaugas of Scugog Island First Nation, the
Mississauga Peoples and the treaty territory of the Chippewas of Georgina Island First Nation. It is
on these ancestral and treaty lands that we teach, learn and live.

3. Declarations of Conflict of Interest

There were no declarations of conflict of interest at this time.

4. Approval of the Agenda

MOVED by Trustee Darlene Forbes
THAT THE AGENDA BE APPROVED AS PRESENTED
CARRIED
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PRACTICES FOR CONSIDERATION

The Canadian 24-Hour Movement Guidelines, a document based on recent research, recommends that,
“for optimal health benefits, children and youth (aged 5—17 years) should achieve high levels of physical
activity, low levels of sedentary behaviour, and sufficient sleep each day.” These guidelines also
recommend “trading indoor time for outdoor time”, and encourage children and youth to participate in a
variety of physical activities, performed in various environments and contexts.

To enhance their well-being and achievement, all students should strive to achieve high levels of
physical activity and limit sedentary behaviour every day. To support them in reaching this goal,
educators may want to consider breaking up longer periods of sedentary time during the school day by
building movement opportunities into instructional time.

IMPLEMENTATION

School boards are responsible for the implementation of this policy and for related training. It is the
collective responsibility of principals and other education professionals to ensure that students receive at

least twenty minutes of moderate to vigorous physical activity during instructional time every school
day.

All activities must be adapted, as appropriate, to ensure that all students, including students with special
education needs, can participate in them. Such adaptations must be consistent with the accommodations
and/or modifications outlined in a student’s Individual Education Plan.

Daily physical activity may be incorporated into the instructional day in a variety of ways. For instance,
integrating physical activity across various curriculum areas in individual blocks of five, ten, or fifteen
minutes of moderate to vigorous activity would be an effective way of meeting the total minimum daily
requirement of twenty minutes, and also of creating a culture of physical activity in the school. Twenty
minutes or more of moderate to vigorous physical activity during a scheduled health and physical
education class would also meet the daily physical activity requirement. Since physical activity is only
one component of a comprehensive health and physical education program, there will be days when a
health and physical education class does not include at least twenty minutes of moderate to vigorous
physical activity. On these days and on days when no health and physical education class is scheduled,
other opportunities for accumulating at least twenty minutes of moderate to vigorous physical activity
during the instructional day must be provided.

3. Canadian 24-Hour Movement Guidelines: An Integration of Physical Activity, Sedentary Behaviour, and Sleep (Toronto:
Canadian Society for Exercise Physiology, 2016).
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SAFETY

As indicated in The Ontario Curriculum, Grades 1-8: Health and Physical Education, 2015, attention to
safety, including physical and emotional safety, is an integral part of instructional planning and
implementation.

The primary responsibility for ensuring safe practices rests with the school board and its employees. The
principal is responsible for ensuring that all students, including students with special education needs,
have the opportunity to participate in daily physical activity in a safe manner. Potential risks must be
identified and procedures developed to prevent or minimize, and respond to, incidents and injuries.

As noted in the Health and Physical Education curriculum document (p. 15), “It is also critical to
student success to create an atmosphere in which students of all body shapes and sizes, abilities, gender
identities and sexual orientations, and ethnocultural, racial, and religious backgrounds feel accepted,
comfortable, and free from harassment.”

REPORTING AND ACCOUNTABILITY

School boards will develop and apply a process to monitor the implementation at the school level of the
requirement outlined in this memorandum. School boards and principals should also take appropriate
action to ensure that parents are kept informed of their children’s participation in daily physical activity.
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Ontario @

Ministry of Education Ministére de I'Education

Office of the Assistant Deputy Minister Bureau du sous-ministre adjoint

Capital and Business Support Division Division du soutien aux immobilisations et aux
affaires

15" Floor 15° étage

315 Front St West 315, rue Front ouest

Toronto ON M7A 0B8 Toronto ON M7A 0B8

Tel.: 416 212-9675 Tél.: 416212-9675

Fax.: 416 325-4024 Téléc. : 416 325-4024

TTY: 1-800-268-7095 ATS: 1-800-268-7095

2019: B20

MEMORANDUM TO: Directors of Education

Superintendents of Facilities

Superintendents of Business
FROM: Colleen Hogan

Assistant Deputy Minister (A)

Capital and Business Support Division
DATE: November 8, 2019
SUBJECT: Education Development Charge Policy Framework Update

Further to Memorandum 2019: B11 Interim Changes to Education Development
Charges (EDC), | am writing to inform you of the conclusion of the Ministry of
Education’s review of the EDC framework, and to outline amendments made to the
Education Act, Ontario Regulation 20/98 (Education Development Charges — General)
and Ontario Regulation 444/98 (Disposition of Surplus Real Property).

In June 2019, the Education Act was amended, through Bill 108 — More Homes, More
Choice Act, 2019 to update the Education Development Charges policy framework.
These amendments support the goals of the government’s Housing Supply Action Plan,
to enhance cost predictability for developers, and to maintain adequate revenues to
support the accommodation of students in new development.

EDC Rate Restrictions:

The EDC rate restrictions previously announced in Memorandum 2019: Memorandum
2019: B11 Interim Changes to Education Development Charges (EDC), remain in-
force with a minor adjustment to the non-residential rate as follows:

* A maximum yearly increase of the greater of 5% or $300 per residential unit; and
» A maximum yearly increase of the greater of 5% or $0.10 per square foot for
non-residential development.
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Alternative Projects and Localized Education Development Agreements:

The amendments to the Education Act and O. Reg. 20/98 support an updated EDC
policy framework which allows for the application of EDC revenue for project costs that
will address the needs of the board for pupil accommodation and ensures school boards
are better able to align the users of schools to the payers of EDCs by:

¢ Allowing school boards to use EDC revenues to support lower-cost alternatives
(Alternative Projects) to site acquisition; and

¢ Allowing school boards to enter into a Localized Education Development
Agreements (LEDAs) that would exempt land from EDCs for specific
developments in exchange for direct alternatives to site acquisition to address
student accommodation needs.

Before a school board can enter into a LEDA or implement an Alternative Project,
Minister approval is required. A school board can request Minister approval at any
point; however, the LEDA or Alternative Project will not come into effect until the boards
passes a new by-law.

A school board may make a change to a previously-approved Alternative Project,
however boards are required to notify the Minister at least 60 days prior to implementing
the change. If the Minister notifies the board, within 60 days from the day the notice was
provided, that the proposed changes shall not be made, the board shall not make the
change.

Notification of Site Acquisition:

School boards are required to provide the Minister with advance notification of their
intent to acquire, lease or expropriate sites that are supported by EDC revenue, Land
Priorities or the Temporary Accommodation Grant,

This notification is to be submitted to the ministry at least 60 days prior to the financial
close of the transaction. If the Minister notifies the board, within 60 days from the day
the notice was provided, that the proposed transaction shall not proceed, the board
shall not proceed with the transaction.

In order to allow boards a full 60-day period to provide notification, this requirement will
come into effect for transactions that are expected to close after January 10, 2020.

EDC Rate Calculation:

The following regulatory amendments were made that affect the EDC rate determination
as follows:
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recently expired by-laws, who are not permanently accommodated should be
added to the count of new pupils that are the result of new residential
development;

The following types of institutional development are now exempt from paying
EDCs:

Long-term care homes;

Retirement homes;

Private schools;

Publicly-assisted universities and colleges;

Indigenous Institutes;

Memorial homes, clubhouses or athletic grounds of the Royal Canadian
Legion;

Hospices; and

Child care centres.

AUl ol o

5 ™

The number of school spaces that can be used to accommodate new pupils from
new residential development are now subject to the Minister's approval; and

School boards are no longer able to calculate a non-residential EDC rate using
the percentage of the declared value of the development.

Administration:

The following regulatory amendments were made that are administrative in nature:

°

School boards are no longer required to prepare a pamphlet for each
development charge by-law. Instead, school boards are only required to post the
required information on the board’s website;

School boards are now permitted to make changes to the geographic boundaries
of their by-laws, subject to the existing requirement that a by-law not apply with
respect to land in more than one region; and

When providing notice of a board’s meeting regarding the passage of an EDC
by-law, a board must provide specifics, including the location, time and date of
the meeting.

Changes to the Education Act were also made to authorize the Lieutenant Governor in
Council to make regulations governing the expiration of Education Development Charge
by-laws. This allows for a regulation to be made that would specify an expiration date
for by-laws currently in force, thereby ensuring all new by-laws adhere to the new
legislative requirements at an appropriate time in the future. No such regulation has
been made.
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EDUCATION DEVELOF

ez o f) it

Proposal Details

The More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 received Royal Assent on June 6, 2019.
Schedule 4 of that Act amends the Education Act to require school boards to provide
notice to the Minister of Education if the board plans to acquire or expropriate land. The
Minister would be authorized to reject the board's proposal.

The amendments to the Education Act will also allow school boards, subject to the
approval of the Minister, to enter into Localized Education Development Agreements to
allow a land owner to provide a lease, real property or other prescribed benefit to be
used by the school board in place of paying EDCs. The amendments will also allow
boards, subject to the approval of the Minister, to allocate EDCs towards alternative
projects, which are projects, leases or other prescribed measures that would address
the board’s needs for pupil accommodation.

Changes to Ontario Regulation 20/98 (Education Development Charges — General)
made under the Education Act are being proposed to support the amendments to the
Education Act made through the More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019. Other changes
are also being proposed to the regulation that relate to the process of passing an EDC
by-law and determining EDC rates.

1. Rate Increase Restrictions
Currently, annual increases to education development charges are restricted to:

* Residential: increases of 5% or $300 per unit (whichever is greater)
= Non-residential: increases of 5%

Proposed Content:

* Non-residential: annual increases of 5% or $0.10 per square foot (whichever is
greater)

2. Notice of Public Meetings

Under the Education Act, school boards must hold at least one public meeting prior to
passing an EDC by-law. Boards are required to provide notice at least 20 days prior to
the meeting.

Proposed Content:

The proposed regulation would specify details of the notice of the public meeting, which
would include:

* Location of the meeting,

+ Time and date of the meeting,
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« A statement to the public indicating that the school board is accepting Alternative
Projects and Localized Education Development Agreements proposals for
consideration.

+ The final date by which the board will no longer accept Alterative Project and
Localized Education Development Agreement proposals.

Notice of public meetings would be required to be posted on the board's website.

3. Existing School Space to be included in the calculation of EDCs

Currently, school boards must include all existing school space that, in the opinion of
the board, could reasonably be used to accommodate new pupils that are the result of
new residential development.

Proposed Content:

The proposed regulation would specify that the school board'’s determination of existing
school spaces that could reasonably be used to accommodate new pupils that are the
result of new residential development would be subject to the Minister's approval.,

4. Changes to an Alternative Project

Under the amendments to the Education Act, school boards will be required to notify the
Minister of Education if it is proposing changes to an Alternative Project after the project
has been approved by the Minister.

Proposed Content:

It is proposed that school boards provide notice to the Minister at least 60 days prior to
making a change to an approved alternative project. The Minister would then have 60
days after the issuance of the notice by the board to deny the proposed change.

5. Education Development Charge-Exempt Institutions

Itis proposed that a variety of institutions that provide social benefits to the community
would be exempt from paying education development charges.

Proposed Content:

The following types of organizations would be exempt from paying EDCs:

* Long-term care homes;
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* Retirement homes;

« Private schools;

* Universities and colleges;

+ Memorial homes, clubhouses or athletic grounds of the Royal Canadian Legion;
Hospices;

= Child care facilities.

6. Holding Students

Currently, students of the board that are not permanently accommodated (e.g. students
that are in temporary school accommodations) are not included in the counting of
students for the purpose of calculating EDC rates.

Proposed Content:

The regulation would clarify that existing students from new developments who are not
permanently accommodated would be added the counting of new pupils that are the
result of new residential development.

7. Notice to Acquire or Expropriate Site

Under the amendments to the Education Act, school boards will be required to notify the
Minister of Education should they plan to acquire land by purchase, expropriation, lease
or by any other means within a time period that would be set out in regulation. If the
Minister responds, within a time period that would be set out in regulation, that the
board shall not proceed with the acquisition, the board would not be authorized to
proceed with the acquisition.

Proposed Content:

The proposed regulation would require boards to notify the Minister of Education at
least 60 days prior to:
+ the close of the purchase of a site;
« the date the board plans to applies for approval from its trustees to expropriate; O
entering into a lease (of any term); or
* acquisition by any other means.

The Minister would then have 60 days from the day the board provides its notice to
notify the board that it shall not proceed with the proposed acquisition.
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